OnPoint Course Manager: Section 5 Events and Activities



December 2017

This document contains proprietary and confidential information from OnPoint Digital, Inc. Any reproduction or distribution of these materials in whole or part without the expressed written consent of the company is strictly forbidden.

Table of Contents

5.0 Events & Activities	.1
5.0.1 Events & Activities: Event Structures	. 1
5.1 Events & Activities: Functions	.4
5.1.1 Events & Activities: Master Event Calendar	.5
5.2 Events & Activities: Table Display All Events	.6
5.2.1 Table Display- All Events: Add an Event	. 8
5.2.2 Table Display- All Events: Edit an Event	10
5.2.3 Table Display- All Events: Delete an Event	10
5.3 Events & Activities: Sub Tabs	12
5.3.1 Events & Activities: Classes	15
5.3.1.1 Classes: Revise class & Session Schedule (for User)	16
5.3.1.2 Classes: Revise Session Schedule for User	17
5.3.1.3 Classes: Add a New Class	18
5.3.1.4 Classes: Edit a Class	20
5.3.1.5 Classes: Add a Session	21
5.3.1.6 Classes: Session Enrollment	25
5.3.1.7 Classes: Approvals	25
5.3.1.8 Classes: Waiting Lists/Approvals	26
5.3.2 Events & Activities: Assignments	27
5.3.2.1 Assignments: Event Coordinators	d.
5.3.2.2 Assignments: User/Group Assignments	d.
5.3.3 Events & Activities: Triggers	28
5.3.3.1 Triggers: Add Notification	29
5.3.3.2 Triggers: Add Assignment	30

5.3.3.3 Events & Activities: Advanced	
5.3.3.4 Triggers: Event Notifications	Error! Bookmark not defined.
5.3.3.5 Events & Activities: Prerequisites	
5.3.3.6 Events & Activities: Certificates	
5.3.3.7 Events & Activities: Games	
5.6 Events & Activities: Registration Overview	
5.8 Events & Activities: Activities	
5.8.1 Events & Activities: Activities	
5.8.1.1 Activities: Search for Activity Record	
5.8.1.2 Activities: Create New Activity Record	
5.8.1.3 Activities: Edit an Activity Record	
5.8.1.4 Activities: Delete an Activity Record	
5.8.2 Events & Activities: Activity Sub-Tabs	
5.8.2.1 Events & Activities: Activity Information	
5.8.2.2 Events & Activities: Activity Assignments	
5.8.2.4 Events & Activities: Triggers	
5.8.2.5 Events & Activities: Skills & Games	
5.9 Events & Activities: Activity Completion	
5.10 Events & Activities: Reports	

5.0 Events & Activities

In addition to helping organizations with their online e-learning training and organizational development practices, OnPoint's Course Manager platform also helps these same organizations to plan, manage and deliver their traditional, offline Instructor-Led Training (ILT) courses as well as organize webinars/web meetings and other live streaming sessions they may have as part of an overall blended learning approach. We refer to these as "Events". In truth, most organizations come to the realm of online learning after years of experience in the "offline world" where traditional classes taught by professional instructors educate their associates "cradle-to-grave:" from job orientation, to job responsibilities, to retirement or job outplacement.

As the global economy expands and organizations of all sizes find themselves lean and far-flung, finding ways to manage all of the training efforts in a consistent and effective manner becomes a paramount concern for any learning organization. Accordingly, OnPoint's tightly-knit approach marries all training/development status information about any User/Learner within that organization into one integrated platform that can track organizational learning at the individual, group or enterprise level through any training medium – online or offline.

The **Events & Activities** functionality covered here represents the more traditional Learning Management System (LMS) features found within OnPoint's Course Manager application. All Event-related assignments made to Users/Learners (e.g., attending an ILT session, accessing a webinars, viewing a live streaming event) are tracked in the same progress and performance schema as the online Courses and Assessments assigned to these same Users/Learners. In fact, most organizations are increasingly using online elements to supplement and support their offline training sessions; this would commonly include (A) an online pre-test taken before attending an ILT session or webinar, (B) an online preparatory Course completed to better prepare a User/Learner before they attend a live training session, (C) an online post-session Assessment or Survey that measures their knowledge and retention of materials covered in an ILT, webinar or live streaming session, and (D) an online refresher or supplemental training Course distributed to ILT Users/Learners weeks or even months after their classroom session, used to reinforce or enrich their base knowledge.

The Activities functionality represents the solution's ability to track external actions assigned to (and tracked for) learners, normally as part of a detailed learning path or competency to achieve.

5.0.1 Events & Activities: Event Structures

OnPoint's Event functionality provides unique support for all three Event types mentioned above: ILT, Webinars and Live Streaming Sessions. Organizations can create and manage these offline classes/sessions as either a single occurrence Event (e.g., one class/session occurring on one day for one time only) or as a recurring Event (e.g., the same class/session conducted the first Monday of every month). Event completion can also be tied to a User/Learner attending more than one Class for a given Event (e.g., successful completion of an Event requiring attendance at three separate Classes comprised of all-day sessions Monday, Tuesday and Wednesday). Finally, to streamline registration and attendance tracking, OnPoint's Event functionality makes it easy for both Managers and Users/Learners (if permitted) to find and select the Events, Classes and Sessions that best meet their availability and location preference.



Figure 5-1 – Events & Activities: Event Structure

No matter what type of Event you need to create and manage, the basic Event structure is the same. As depicted above, every Event consists of 3 parts; the Event Information, the Class Description, and the Session Details;

when creating or editing any Event, Administrators must ensure that all of the necessary information has been provided for all three parts of the Event definition.

- **Part 1 Event Information** helps to define what sort of Event is being offered and details what each Learner earns by successfully completing that Event.
- **Part 2 Class Description** defines how much time/effort it will take to successfully complete the Event. Events may have one or several Classes defined, framing the number of days or unique classes a Learner must attend in order to get credit for the top-level Event.
- **Part 3 Session Details** represent the specific dates, times, locations and assigned instructors who will be conducting an Event (or any thereof).

To better understand the differences between the three parts, the bullets listed below each distinct part above show which questions are answered at each level of Event definition.

When creating or editing an Event, the Administrator is required to enter detailed information into the displayed database fields.

As outlined below, each of the three parts provides Event specifics that frame the structure and delivery of that Event. Part 1 - **Event** information is considered very high-level and mostly used to manage the expected outcomes while Part 3 -**Session Details** is very specific to a time and place and the Learner's actual registration and attendance of that assigned Session.

The example shown below represents the basic three-part structure with one Event (what: a fire safety Course), one Class required to get credit for that Event (how long: 8 hours on Safety 101) and just one Session offered for the defined Event-Class (when/where/who: Thursday at 8AM in Training Room #6 with Instructor Alice Rabbit). Learners who register and attend the June 8th session (and pass any associated Assessments if included) can then earn credit for the Fire Safety Event.



Figure 5-2 – Events & Activities: Event Information

While this simple 3-part, one-to-one-to-one structure works for the example above, the larger the organization, the more requirement there will be for modifying the structure of an Event in terms of the number of available Sessions and the numbers of Classes that must be completed in order to get credit for the Event assignment. The next example shows a sample Instructor-Led Training Event on Forklift Safety that consists of one 4-hour Class. Due to the number of employees who must be certified annually to ensure OSHA compliance, this Forklift Safety course is offered at two different times or Sessions. Learners can select which of the two offered Sessions best fits their schedule and availability. Any assigned Learner attending (and passing) either Session will satisfy the single Class requirement and overall Event requirements.



Figure 5-3 – Events & Activities: Event Example

Finally, to demonstrate another layer of flexibility, this next example shows a typical New Hire Orientation ILT Event that is held for all new associates on the first Monday of every calendar month and generally occurs over a 3-day period ending on Wednesday. The structure of the Event includes 3 Classes, one on Monday, Tuesday and Wednesday respectively. While the Monday Class is a full-day Session, the Tuesday and Wednesday Classes are only 4 hours in duration due to the fact that a large amount of paperwork needs to be handed out, filled out and collected during the Sessions so they are kept shorter and smaller than the General Class held on Monday. To give New Hire Event Attendees and their Managers some flexibility, the Tuesday and Wednesday Classes are offered either in the morning from 8AM until noon or after lunch from 1PM until 5PM. New Hires must attend the Monday session, plus one Session on Tuesday and one on Wednesday to get credit for the event.

One of the other advantages of the OnPoint Event structure is the fact that if a New Hire Event Attendee misses one of their required Sessions – for example, either the morning or afternoon Session for the Wednesday Class #3 – they can make up their Session absence by attending a future Session (provided space is available). Since all Session Details are related to specific dates, times and locations, attending any Session for the required Class --either in the current Class Series or any future Class series – satisfies the attendance requirements for the overall Event. Administrators can configure Event records to allow Users to change their own Session assignments if they wish to allow that flexibility, or can restrict any rescheduling to Administrators and Event Managers only.



Figure 5-4 – Events & Activities: Event Example 2



Note: Instructors who have an OnPoint Reporting Manager license can view individual User attendance as well as run reports on Class Attendance. Instructors who have a Group Manager license can also make individual user assignments and schedule changes.

5.1 Events & Activities: Functions

Course Manager includes a fully functional Event creation and registration system that allows Root and Site Administrators and Event Managers to schedule, assign, announce, and manage all of their **Events & Activities** for their Users/Learners and Managers. To access these functions, select the Events & Activities tab from the Course Manager menu. When selected, this primary-level menu opens to reveal several submenu options that provide direct access to all **Events & Activities**-related functions within the Course Manager system.

The **Events and Activities** dropdown menu displays the following selections:

- **Master Event Calendar** This selection allows Administrators to see a calendar view of all upcoming Events, including classroom training, web-based training, and live streaming events.
- **Instructor-Led** This selection produces a table listing of all ILT-related Events currently defined and managed in Course Manager. From the table list, to open or edit any ILT Event record, click on the **Instructor-Led Training Event**.
- **Webinars** This selection produces a table listing of all Webinar-related Events currently defined and managed in Course Manager. From the **Events: Webinar** page, select any webinar you wish to open or edit the webinar event record. Unlike the Instructor-Led Events described above, Webinars have additional fields where web addresses/URLs are defined to automate the process of launching Webinars for Learners attending these Events.
- Event Session Wizard This selection provides access to an Event Session Wizard that will make it easier to transcode files, convert PowerPoint presentations to online or mobile delivery, create events, etc.
- **Resources** This selection produces a table listing of all resource names, locations and actions that are available to be used and can be scheduled out for an event by an instructor. This option will also allow additional resources to be added to the list.
- **Registration** This selection provides a list of all Event Registration Requests (ILT, Webinar or Live Streaming) that are pending Administrative approval. Requests are listed in reverse date order (most recent first) and the displayed list includes the User, Event requested, class, session, maximum seats, available seats, and the Date and Time of the Registration Request. An Administrator may approve, deny, or remove (disapprove) the Request via a simple radio button. This function is also available for an Administrator from the Home page of Course Manager where any Pending Requests would be noted.
- **Event Locations** This selection produces a listing of all locations that have been added for Events. It is a tiered approach and can have a parent location and then children that are underneath these locations. For example if there is a Western Region and that region has 4 main offices the parent would be the Western Region and the children locations under the parent would be the 4 individual offices.
- Activities This selection provides a list of all defined Activities in the shared repository. Activities are
 formal assignments that supplement a user's online and ILT assignments, such as attending a seminar or
 completing an industry certification. The list displays Activities alphabetically by Activity Name, organized
 by Category, and includes Activity Type and Status. Specific Activity detail is accessible by clicking on
 the Activity Name link.
- Activity Completion This selection displays a list of all Activities and the User Names and Status of each. Activities are listed alphabetically by Activity Name, and can show "All" Activities or be filtered on just a selected Activity. The list can also be filtered for "All" Users or just a specific User. Managers may update individual Users' records by clicking on the specific User name link and updating the record.
- **Reports** This link provides preformatted Reports used by administrators to report on Events-related data.

5.1.1 Events & Activities: Master Event Calendar

The Master Calendar view allows Administrators to see a calendar view of all upcoming Events, including Instructor- Led training, and Webinar training. Standard filters allow the Administrator to see all Events at a particular location, or taught by a particular instructor, or both. Additional display options provide a weekly view or a list view.

Master Calendar Filters

To use the Master calendar filters, use any combination of filters detailed below.

Events & Activities: Master Calendar				
Element	nent Description			
Name:	Enter any word(s) included in the Event name to display only those Events. Click Enter on your keyboard or the Apply button to show the filtered results.			
Location:	Use the drop-down Location list to filter by Location. Only one location may be selected at a time, or select '- all-' to show all Events at every Location. [Locations may be established at Events & Activities -> Event Locations.]			
Instructor:	Use the drop-down Instructor list to filter by Instructor. Only one Instructor may be selected at a time, or select - all- to show Events taught by all Instructors. [Instructors may be established under Users & Groups -> Users by setting the Instructor setting to 'Y' for any User on the User Information tab.]			
Status:	Use the drop-down Status list to filter by the event status. Only one status may be selected at a time, or do not select an option to view events with any status. The options for a status are Approved or Pending.			
Display Time Zone:	Use the drop-down time zone list to display all events in the master calendar in accordance with the selected time zone. Default is US/Eastern time zone.			

You may also change the Event calendar display by applying other filters available after selecting the "More" button on the upper right. This will show more filter options for calendar events such as selecting resources, or a specfic coordinator from the drop-down lists.

Master Calendar Views

To display the calendar by week or in a list view, select the desired option from the drop-down list in the bottom right. Use the **'(Previous date)'**, **'Today**' and **'(Next date)'** buttons above and to the right of the master calendar to help you navigate.

Select the ⁺ on the right side to print the Master Event Calendar in the view you have selected.

5.2 Events & Activities: Table Display All Events

The first two items after the Master Events Calendar under the **Events and Activities** dropdown menu are Instructor-Led and Webinars. If you select either of these, the first screen displays the database listing of all current Events of that type that are defined and managed in Course Manager. All events are listed in alphabetical order and arranged in order of their assigned Category. From this display, you may:

- 1. Select an Event record from the List to review or edit by clicking on the Event;
- 2. Read Event Descriptions, confirm the number of Classes assigned, determine Pending Registration Requests, check if there are any waitlisted, or check the status of the event.
- 3. Click the Add Event button to create a new event;
- 4. Click the **Filter** button to narrow the displayed list of Events by Name, Category or other criteria available.

EVENTS	EVENTS: INSTRUCTOR LED TRAINING					
+ Add	Event					
▼ Filt	er Id Category	 Name Apply 				
Id	Event Name	Description	Classes	Pending	Waitlisted	Status
** QA T	esting					
625	CS TAC Specialty Coated Paper	CS TAC 7.11.16-7.15.16	1	0	0	Active
577	LMS-5583	Unassigned event with two classes sessions in different locations. Expected behavior is that selecting a session from the catalog for a specific date and location from the first class should select the second class in the same location.	2	0	0	Active
590	May 2016 Event		1	2	0	Active
623	Notifications-Testing Event	test	1	0	0	Active
546	QA - Test Event 1 (Understanding the Triple	QA - Test Event 1 (Understanding the Triple Option) 2 0 Active				
*** Too	ting					
569	Event for testing		1	0	0	Active
551	EVENT NAME	EVENT DESCRIPTION	1	0	0	Active
568	January 2015 Event		1	0	0	Active
512	Mobile Learning Overview	Are you interested in extending your elearning experience into the realm of the mobile world? Upon completion of this training you will have a fundamental understanding of how mobile learning works as well as how to fully maximize its potential. Once complete you will be eligible to participate in the Mobile Learning Experience!	2	0	0	Active
552	OnPoint Test Event - 6-10	OnPoint Test Event - 6-10	1	0	0	Active
570	St. Patricks Day Parade		1	1	0	Active
544	Test Event	Test	1	0	0	Active

Figure 5-5 - Events & Activities: Events-All



Note: Given the basic structure and composition of all Instructor-led Training Events is very similar to that of the Webinar Events to follow later in this Help Guide, most instruction needed to learn any one type of Event is directly related to learning the other type of Events. Accordingly, throughout this section, the term "Events" is generally applicable to Instructor-Led or Webinar Events unless otherwise noted.

The Event list displays the following:

Events & Activities: Events Table Display			
Element Description			
Event Id:	Indicates the unique Event Id that was automatically assigned to the Event when it was created. Event Ids are issued once and never reused.		
Event Name:	The assigned name of the Event. Tip: Always include a Category when creating an Event. Later, that will make it easier		

	to find the Event you are searching for from the main Event list, since Event Names may be similar.
Description:	Provides a brief description of the selected Event. This description will display to Users/Learners in the Event Calendar, the Event Information Page, and via a Portal search.
Classes:	Displays a numerical value that summarizes how many distinct Classes a User/Learner must attend to gain credit for the Event.
Pending:	Displays a numerical value that summarizes the total number of Event Registration Requests pending approval by an Administrator.
Waitlisted:	Displays a numerical value that indicates the total number of Users who are waitlisted for the Class/Session. In the event a seat becomes available, waitlisted users move into the available seat on a first-come first-serve basis.
Unassigned Sessions:	This indicates the number of users who are assigned the Event but are missing a session assignment.
Status:	Shows the current status of the Event record (Active , Inactive , or Deleted) if the Filter is set to Display "All" status conditions.

Other Event: List - Related Information:

A few additional features can be found on the Event List Screen:

- A. **Results Page Listing** Event Lists with more than 50 records are separated over multiple pages. These pages can be navigated using the Results Page Listing at the bottom left of the Event List screen. Pages can be accessed by the numbered pages, or navigating through using the Next arrows.
- B. **Event Count** At the bottom left of the Events & Activities: List table is a count of the Events listed in your Course Manager database; the number will include inactive and requested delete events if you have set your filter to display all status types.
- C. Color Keys Events listed in the Event List table are considered "Active" but may be flagged as "Inactive" or "Request Delete" by an Administrator. When any defined Events have been flagged as either "Inactive" or as "Request Delete", the updated Event record will appear in a Yellow highlight color indicating that Event record has been marked as "Inactive" or will appear in a Pink highlight color indicating that Event record has been marked as "Request Delete".



Note: The list filter defaults to show Active Events; in the filter status field, de-select Active to view all Events.

00001	Fire Safety	Learn not to burn.
00097	Running with Scissors	Learn to be smart about your office habits and practices.
00088	Vapors and Ordors	Learn how your nose can save your life.
Results page: 1		
14 listed inactive deleted		

Figure 5-6 - Events & Activities: Event List Screen

5.2.1 Table Display- All Events: Add an Event

To create a new Event, click the appropriate type of Event (Instructor-Led or Webinars) on the **Events and Activities** dropdown menu. This selection displays the database listing of all currently defined Events of that type in Course Manager. To add a new Event, click the **Add Event** button at the top left. A blank Event record will display. Complete the following data fields that are appropriate:

Events & Activities: Add an Event				
Element	Description			
Event Type:	States the Event Type for the selected Event. This field cannot be edited, and will read "Instructor-Led Training" or "Webinar".			
Event Name:	Enter the name of the new Event. (Required Field)			
Description:	Provide a brief description of the selected Event. This description appears to Users on the Event Information Page, in the Event Catalog (if enabled for this Event; see "In OPCV Event Catalog" field below) and via a Portal search.			
Synopsis:	Provide a more detailed summary of the selected Event if desired. This summary appears to Users on the Event Detail of an Event assignment, and on the Event Registration Page.			
Category:	Select a Category to help in Event organization and searching.			
Webinar Type:	This flag indicates integration with Adobe Connect or WebEx systems for event registration and reporting.			
Require Approval:	 Indicate whether the Course requires instructor or manager approval. Select the option that best fits this Event. Yes = Requires Approval No = Does not Require Approval If you mark an Event as 'No', Users may select it (if it is included in the Catalog) and self-register for it without Manager approval. 			
In General Catalogs:	Indicate whether this particular Event will be available for Users to see and request access to through the Event Catalog. The Catalog allows Users to self-register for Events they are interested in that don't require approval, and request registration to those Events that do require Approval. In this case, their status will be pending until a Manager approves their request.			
In OPEC Catalog:	Indicate whether this particular Event will be available for Users to purchase through the e-Commerce Catalog. The Catalog allows Users to register for and purchase Events made available, and request registration to those Events that require Approval. Requires purchase of optional OPEC module.			
OPPM Assignable:	Select whether Group Managers can assign this Event to their users.			
Auto Assign Sessions:	 Allows a manager to set up the system to automatically assign users to available sessions or not. Select Yes to indicate that Users will be automatically assigned to the next available (future) session of that Event (unless all sessions are full, in which case, they will be assigned to a Waiting List) Select No to leave all newly assigned users in the Missing Sessions (unassigned) bucket. From there they can be assigned to any session by a manager. 			
User Select Sessions:	This field indicates whether or not a User can select or change/update their Event			

	 Session selections. Select Yes to allow users to see a list of upcoming Sessions for the Event they are registered for, and to select an alternate Session(s) to attend. Select No if you wish users to be assigned to the first available Session for each Class for the Event they are registered for. Users will not see a list of other available sessions that may be being held. 	
User Change Sessions:	This field indicates whether or not a User can change/update their Event Session selection.	
Allow User Rating:	This flag sets whether or not a user can rate this Event.	
Assigned Survey:	This field allows an Admin to select a general survey to be associated with this event. This field works in conjunction with user ratings so that when these are flagged, a user can go into OPCV and provide both a rating and comments after an Event has been completed.	
Credit Hours:	Enter the number of credit hours associated with the Event.	
OPPM Recommendable:	This Yes/No setting allows an Admin to say whether or not a Performance Manager can recommend this Event to their managed users.	
Use Seat Allocation:	If this field is set to Yes, the system will auto-fill a user assignments up to the allotted seat allocation and all additional attendance requests will put those users on a waitlist.	
No Session Notification:	This helps an Admin create a Trigger to remind users who have unassigned sessions to choose an available session. Choose the number of days from the date of the assignment that the first notification should go out.	
No Session Notification Interval:	Choose the number of days between reminder notifications.	
Status:	Indicates the Status of the Event. Active (Event in use) Inactive (Event not in use) Request Delete (Event no longer needed) 	
Custom Fields: (up to 10)	Displays fields for the collection of up to 10 different pieces of additional information about the Event. Establishment of these fields is handled under the Administration - > Custom Fields menu.	

After making your entries, click one of the following:

🖺 Save	To save any changes made.
⊘ Cancel	To cancel the action and exit this page without making any changes.



Note: Most of the Event data fields are optional. You may create a new Event simply by providing the required field and allowing the system defaults to apply. You may return later to edit the Event data at any time.

5.2.2 Table Display- All Events: Edit an Event

To edit an existing Event record, select it from the table listing by clicking on the Event. The **Event Information** sub-tab will display the general Event information.

Notice that you now see **<u>Hide</u>** or **<u>Edit</u>** links for the Synopsis message that will allow you to edit the message.

Several Action Buttons appear across the center of the screen. Event Action Buttons include:

Events & Activities: Action Buttons		
Action Button	Description	
I Edit	Allows you to view and edit the data fields for the selected record.	
2 Refresh	Refreshes the web page with all recent updates (if needed).	
 List 	Returns you to the Events and Activities List.	

Notice that the record's **'Created**' and last **'Updated**' dates are displayed at the lower left of the page. Click the **Updates** link for a list of dates this record has been edited, and by whom. Click the **Edit** button to edit the Event, then select from the buttons below when you're finished.

At any time you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.

5.2.3 Table Display- All Events: Delete an Event

To make an existing Event "Inactive," or mark it for deletion, select **Events and Activities** from the main Course Manager drop-down menu system and select either Instructor-Led or Webinar. Select the Event you wish to change and when the Event record is displayed, click the **Edit** button.

In OPCV/Mobile Catalogs:	🔿 Yes 🧿 No
In OPEC Catalog:	🔿 Yes 🧿 No
OPPM Assignable:	• Yes 🔿 No
Auto Assign Sessions:	🔿 Yes 💿 No 🚯 Tip
User Select Sessions:	• Yes 🔿 No 🚯 Tip
User Change Sessions:	🔿 Yes 💿 No
Allow User Rating:	🔿 Yes 💿 No
Assigned Survey:	•
Credit Hours:	0.0
OPPM Recommendable:	• Yes 🔿 No
Use Seat Allocation:	• Yes 🔿 No
Status:	• Active 🔿 Inactive 🔿 Delete

Figure 5-7 – Events & Activities: Delete an Event

From the **Events: Event Edit** screen, at the Status field, select Inactive or Request delete from the radio buttons. Click the **Save** button to activate your change. The Status field will now show the changed status.

Click the **List** button to return to the Event List.

The Event will now appear highlighted in **Yellow** (for **Inactive** status) or in **Pink** (for **Request delete** status) in the Event List (if the Filter is set to show all status conditions in the display) to alert others as to the status of the Event record.



Note: Deletion tasks can only be performed by a Site or Root Administrator. When an item's status is changed to Request delete, an Administrator reviews the request to ensure there is no need for it before performing the delete function (Administration tab > Deletion Tasks option).

5.3 Events & Activities: Sub Tabs

To view an **Event** record, select the Event you wish to view from the list of Events and the record for that Event will appear. The displayed record provides a detailed description of the Event and organizes this information across eight Submenus/Tabs as follows:

- **Information** Tab 1 "Information" provides the high level information about a selected Event including fields for Event Name, Description, a detailed Synopsis, the Category assignment, approval conditions, catalog display conditions, and current Event record status. In addition, this screen can contain up to 10 Event-related custom fields that help to better classify and manage an organization's Events.
- **Classes** Tab 2 "Classes" presents a listing of all of the defined Classes created as part of this selected Event. The Classes Submenu/Tab allows Administrators to add or edit any Classes or their related Sessions, review any Class and Session details, and drill down into the session specifics including scheduling and registration information.
- **Assignments** Tab 3 "Assignments" shows all the current Assignments for this Event, including the Event/Session Coordinators who have oversight over registration tasks for this Event, plus assigned Users or Groups/Job Codes for the Event.
- **Advanced** Tab 5 "Advanced" is where you will set up any advanced features for your Event. These settings are all optional, and global default settings may apply.
- **Triggers** Tab 4 "Triggers" allows you to define an automated system action upon occurrence of specific Event conditions.
- **Prerequisites** Tab 6 "Prerequisites" allows Administrators to establish any requisite assignments they want Users/Learners to complete before accessing this Event. Prerequisites can be any object type in the system (Course, Assessment Set, Nugget, Event, or Activity).
- **Certificates** Tab 7 "Certificates" allows you to select a certificate design for the specific event from a list of Event-specific certificates stored in the system Library.
- Games Tab 8 'Games' allows you to associate Game Points with the Event.

EVENT	S: INSTR	UCTOR L	ED TRAINING	6						
🗏 Inf	formation	Classes	Assignments	Advanced	Triggers	Prerequisites	Certificates	Games		
	Eve	ent Id: 623					Custo	m Fields		
	Event	Name: Not	ifications-Testi	ng Event			Adobe	Connect Folder:		
	Descr	iption: test						Event Custom:		
	Syr	nopsis: <u>hide</u>	e 🗎 <u>edit</u>					New:		
	Category: ** QA Testing Custom 4:							Custom 4:		
	Require App	proval: No						Custom 5:		
In OPCV	//Mobile Cat	talogs: No						Custom 6:		
	In OPEC Ca	atalog: No						Custom 7:		
	OPPM Assig	nable: Yes						Custom 8:		
Auto	Auto Assign Sessions: No					Custom 9:				
Use	er Select Se	ssions: Yes						Custom 10:		
User	Change Sea	ssions: No								
	User F	Rating: Not	allowed							
	Assigned S	urvey:								
	Credit	Hours: 0.0								
OPPM	Recommen	dable: Yes								
Us	se Seat Allo	cation: Yes								
	Status: Active									
C Ec	dit 🛛 🕶 F	Refresh	∢List mit N	Master Calend	ar					

Figure 5-8 – Events & Activities: View an Event

Other Event: Record Features:

A few additional items can be found at the bottom of every Event record information sub-tab, including the following Action Buttons.

Action buttons are located about midsection down the screen, allowing you to Edit, Refresh, and Return to the Events List.

🕑 Edit	Allows you to view and edit the data fields for the selected record.					
C Refresh Refreshes the web page with all recent updates (if needed).						
▲ List						
🛗 Master Calendar	Returns you to the Master Calendar.					
Forum This field lets you auto-create a forum to be associated with an Event Session group.						
Parameters Parameters are useful in creating custom logic scenarios to support user interface display.						
Recertify	This function is used when the Event recertifies periodically (annual, every 3 years, etc.)					

To edit/update an Event record, click the **Edit** button and the Edit screen will appear.

The following fields make up an Event record and can be Edited or Updated:

	Events & Activities: Edit/Update Event Record
Element	Description
Event Type:	States the Event Type for the selected Event. This field cannot be edited, and will read "Instructor-Led Training" or "Webinar".
Event Name:	Enter the name of the new Event. (Required Field).
Description:	Provide a brief description of the selected Event. This description appears to Users on the Event Information Page, in the Event Catalog (if enabled for this Event; see "In OPCV Event Catalog" field below) and via a Portal search.
Synopsis:	Provide a more detailed summary of the selected Event if desired. This summary appears to Users on the Event Detail of an Event assignment, and on the Event Registration Page.
Category:	Select a Category to help in Event organization and searching.
Webinar Type:	This flag indicates integration with Adobe Connect or WebEx systems for event registration and reporting.
Require Approval:	Indicate whether the Course requires instructor or manager approval. Select the option that best fits this Event. Yes = Requires Approval No = Does not Require Approval If you mark an Event as 'No', Users may select it (if it is included in the Catalog) and self-register for it without Manager approval.
In General Catalogs:	Indicate whether this particular Event will be available for Users to see and request access to through the Event Catalog. The Catalog allows Users to self-register for Events they are interested in that don't require approval, and request registration to those Events that do require Approval. n this case, their status will be pending until a Manager approves their request.
In OPEC Catalog:	Indicate whether this particular Event will be available for Users to purchase through the e-Commerce Catalog. The Catalog allows Users to register for and purchase Events made available, and request registration to those Events that

	require Approval. Requires purchase of optional OPEC module.
OPPM Assignable:	Select whether Group Managers can assign this Event to their users.
Auto Assign Sessions:	 Allows a manager to set up the system to automatically assign users to available sessions or not. Select Yes to indicate that Users will be automatically assigned to the next available (future) session of that Event (unless all sessions are full, in which case, they will be assigned to a Waiting List) Select No to leave all newly assigned users in the Missing Sessions (unassigned) bucket. From there they can be assigned to any session by a manager.
User Select Sessions:	 This field indicates whether or not a User can select or change/update their Event Session selections. Select Yes to allow users to see a list of upcoming Sessions for the Event they are registered for, and to select an alternate Session(s) to attend. Select No if you wish users to be assigned to the first available Session for each Class for the Event they are registered for. Users will not see a list of other available sessions that may be being held.
User Change Sessions:	This field indicates whether or not a User can change/update their Event Session selection.
Allow User Rating:	This flag sets whether or not a user can rate this Event.
Assigned Survey:	This field allows an Admin to select a general survey to be associated with this event. This field works in conjunction with user ratings so that when these are flagged, a user can go into OPCV and provide both a rating and comments after an Event has been completed.
Credit Hours:	Enter the number of credit hours associated with the Event.
OPPM Recommendable:	This Yes/No setting allows an Admin to say whether or not a Performance Manager can recommend this Event to their managed users.
Use Seat Allocation:	If this field is set to Yes, the system will auto-fill a user assignments up to the allotted seat allocation and all additional attendance requests will put those users on a waitlist.
No Session Notification:	This helps an Admin create a Trigger to remind users who have unassigned sessions to choose an available session. Choose the number of days from the date of the assignment that the first notification should go out.
No Session Notification Interval:	Choose the number of days between reminder notifications.
Status:	Indicates the Status of the Event. Active (Event in use) Inactive (Event not in use) Request Delete (Event no longer needed)
Custom Fields:	Fill in from above.

5.3.1 Events & Activities: Classes

Once the top-level Event Information has been defined, Administrators and Event Managers need to create or update associated Class Descriptions and Session Details via the functions found on the "**Classes**" Sub-tab. As described previously, each Event has at least one Class and each Class must have at least one Session. Events that require a User/Learner to attend 2 or more classes will need to have a unique Class created for each. Similarly, the same Class that is offered on more than one occasion needs to have a corresponding Session created for each instance. In the example shown below, the Event titled "Business Process Analysis" consists of 2 different Classes each User/Learner must attend. Assuming today was May 13th at 5:00 p.m., the schedule will show the available sessions as follows: The first Class has 2 dates that are still available. The second Class has only one session remaining.

VENT	S: INSTRU	JCTOR	LED TR	AINING											
≡ Inf	formation	Classes	Assig	nments	Advanced	Triggers	Prerequisites	Certificates	Games						
vent: C + Add	ent: Christmas Party (ld:433) + Add Class Revise Schedule Master Calendar + Show Past Session Class: 12 Days of Christmast Edit Class Add Session Class Scheduling														
Id	Session Dat	e 🗢 Si	tatus	Time	Time Zone	Location	Instructor	Max.	Attended	No Show	Approved	Pending	Waitlisted	Denied	
4684	30-Dec-201	6 A	pproved	10:45 am	Europe/Lond	on Cair Para	vel Cherokee, S	Sassy unlimited	0	0	1	0	0	0	Enrollment
4576	31-Dec-201	6 A	pproved	10:00 am	US/Central	Macon	the Builder,	Bob unlimited	0	0	2	0	0	0	Enrollment
										91	05 Missing	session as	signments	Assign	
Class:	Trimming	the Tree		I	Edit Class Ad	d Session Cl	ass Scheduling								
Id Se	ssion Date	Stati	us Time	Time Zon	e Location Ir	nstructor Ma	x. Attended N	lo Show Approv	ed Pendin	g Waitliste	ed Denied				
								4 Missi	ng session	assignmen	ts Assign				

Figure 5-9 - Events & Activities: Classes

The **Event:** "Classes" Submenu has several functions including the following:

	Events & Activities: Classes Submenu						
Element	Description						
+ Add Class	Click this action button to create/define a new Class for the selected Event.						
Revise Schedule	Click this link to view a listing of all Users/Learners (as well as all of their associated Event Sessions) currently assigned and approved to attend the selected Event.						
Master Calendar	Calendar of all scheduled sessions by month.						
Check Session Assignments: (link)	Performs a real-time system check to ensure an up-to-date schedule is reflected for this particular user. When this link is selected, you will not see any pop-up or results message. This action is similar to a " Refresh " in a browser.						
Show/Hide Past Sessions: (link)	This toggle link, when clicked, will display a list of Past Sessions (prior to the current date). Re-click to return to a list of upcoming sessions.						

Class Descriptions

To the right of each Class Name are three functional links shown in purple:

Edit Class: (link)	Displays the details of the class and permits edits for the selected Class.
Add Session: (link)	Click to add a new Session for the defined Class. Session details include the specific date, time and instructor or WebEx Host who will lead the defined Class Session. For convenience, much of the field information defined at the Class-level will default in the Session-level details but can be edited as needed to fit Session specifics.
Class Scheduling: (link)	Click this link to view a Session-specific listing of all Users/Learners currently assigned and approved to attend the selected Class.

Session Details

Under the Class Name is a list of all associated Sessions that have been entered. Two functions are available:

Session Date: (link)	Click this link to view/edit the Session details for the displayed date.
Enrollment: (link)	Click the link at the far right to review the status of all registered Users/Learners for the defined Session. Use this same screen to indicate/update Session Attendance or change approval status to Pending.

5.3.1.1 Classes: Revise Schedule (for User)

The **Revise Schedule** link allows Administrators and Event Managers to update both Class and Session specifics for Users/Learners who have been previously registered for an Event using an easy two-step process:

- Select User
- Select Session for that User

In Step #1, Administrators are presented with an alphabetized list of Users/Learners for the selected Event and pick the name they wish to update from that list.

EVENTS: EVENT CL Event: Notifications-Te	EVENTS: EVENT CLASS SCHEDULING Event: Notifications-Testing Event							
✓ Finished	Select a user from the Registered Users list on the selected user to a new session. If a user h session, clicking on another session will transfe	the left. The user's class session assignment will be shown in the right hand list. Click on any of the session dates and times to move as attended a session then clicking on another session will add a new non-credit registration. If the user has not yet attended a er the user to the new session. Clicking on a repeat session registration will remove it (if unattended).						
Registered	Filter Name:	Please select a user from the list						
Apps, Testing2 *	Filtered List							

Figure 5-10 – Events & Activities: Class Scheduling

In Step #2, Administrators see a complete Class and Session summary for the selected User/Learner they picked in Step #1. Updates are made by clicking on the Session Date link highlighted in purple for any of the listed Sessions; selections are immediately saved and approved for the requested changes. Click the **Finished** button when all updates for the selected User/Learner have been made.

Boyette, Alaı	ı			Show pas	t sessions
Class: Sever	e Weather Procedure	es		Du	ration: 0:30
Status Credit	Session	Timezone	Location	Instructor	Openings
	Sep-25-2014 9:00 am	US/Eastern		facilitator	9
	Oct-30-2014 9:00 am	US/Eastern		facilitator	10
Class: More	Severe Weather Trai	ning		Du	ration: 1:00
Status Credit	Session	Timezone	Location	Instructor	Openings
	Sep-26-2014 9:00 am	US/Eastern		Katherine Guest	: 11
	Oct-31-2014 9:00 am	US/Eastern		Katherine Guest	12

Figure 5-11- Events & Activities: Class and Session Summary



Tip: If there are multiple classes, you may want to ensure that you change both Class Sessions if that is appropriate (for example, if one Class is a pre-requisite for another, or normally precedes another).

5.3.1.2 Classes: Class Scheduling for User

This function is very similar to the "**Revise Schedule**" function described in the previous section but only looks at Session-level User assignments for a specific class rather than Session assignments for all Classes for a given Event. Administrators and Event Managers will normally use this function when they need to reschedule particular registrants to a specific Class from their currently assigned Session to another available Session in the case where the first Session was cancelled or delayed. Like the Revise Schedule function, the Class Scheduling function is an easy two-step process.

In Step #1 after selecting the Class Scheduling link, Administrators are presented with an alphabetized list of Users/Learners for the selected Class record and pick the name they wish to update from that list .

EVENTS: EVENT CL Event: Notifications-T	EVENTS: EVENT CLASS SCHEDULING Event: Notifications-Testing Event							
	Select a user from the Registered Users list on the selected user to a new session. If a user h session, clicking on another session will transfo	the left. The user's class session assignment will be shown in the right hand list. Click on any of the session dates and times to move as attended a session then clicking on another session will add a new non-credit registration. If the user has not yet attended a er the user to the new session. Clicking on a repeat session registration will remove it (if unattended).						
Registered	Filter Name:	Please select a user from the list						
	Filtered List							
Apps, Testing2 *								

Figure 5-12- Events & Activities: Class Scheduling

In Step #2, Administrators see a complete Class and Session summary for the selected User/Learner they picked in Step #1.

Updates are made by clicking on the Session Date link for any of the listed Sessions; selections are immediately saved and approved for the requested changes .

Three different types of updates can be made:

- Move the User to a different session by clicking on the desired new Session date and time. If the User has not yet attended a session, they will be transferred to the new session. Click the **Finished** button to save and return to the Classes sub-tab.
- If a User has already attended a prior session of the same Class Sessions shown, another Session will add a new non-credit registration for the User. This is used to track Users who may be signing up to take classes they have already taken, or to accommodate a student who feels the need to retake a session. By tracking this, you have the ability to decide if the User should be allowed to do this or not.
- Clicking on a repeat session (as described in #2 above) will remove the registration assignment as long as it has not been attended yet. This is used to remove a repeat registration that a supervisor may have decided the User is not approved to take, or to remove a repeat assignment that the User decides is not going to be needed, and they have sent you a request to cancel their repeat registration.
- Click the **Finished** button when all updates for the selected User/Learner have been made.

EVENTS: EVENT Event: Severe Wea	CLASS SCHEDULING ther Procedures					
♥ Finished	Select a user from the Registered Users list on the left. The user to a new session. If a user has attended a session ther will transfer the user to the new session. Clicking on a repea	user's class session assignment will b n clicking on another session will add a at session registration will remove it (if	e shown in the right ha new non-credit registr unattended).	nd list. Click on a ation. If the user h	any of the session has not yet attend	n dates and times to move the selected led a session, clicking on another session
Registered	▼ Filter Name: ✓ Apply	Boyette, Alan		Shov	v past sessions	
	- filtered list -	Class: Severe Weather Proc	edures		Duration: 0:30	
Alexis, Debra		Status Credit Session	Timezone Loc	ation Instructor	Openings	
Allgood, Tracy		Sep-25-2014 9:0	10 am US/Eastern	facilitator	9 🤜	
Anderson, Angel	a * au	Oct-30-2014 9:0	0 am US/Eastern	facilitator	10	

Figure 5-13- Events & Activities: Class Scheduling Review

5.3.1.3 Classes: Add a New Class

Once a new Event has been created, Administrators and Event Managers need to define at least one "**Class**" to the Event, with at least one "**Session**" time. To add a new class, click the Classes sub-tab and click the **Add Class** button at the top left . A blank Event Class Edit page will display. Please note that while the images below are for an Instructor-Led class, the process and fields are the same for all event types. For information on editing an existing class, see section below.

EVENTS: INSTR	UCTOR L	ED TRAINING	1			
Information	Classes	Classes Assignments Advanced Triggers Prerequisites				Cert
Event: Notifications-Testing Event (Id:623) + Add Class Revise Schedule Master Calendar						
Class: Notifications-Testing Event Class 1 Edit Class Add Session Class Scheduling						
Id Session Date	Status	Time Time Zor	e Location	Instructor M	lax. Attended M	No Shov

Figure 5-14A- Events & Activities: Add New Class

EVENTS: EVENT CLASS EDIT					
Event: Notifications	-Testing Event (Id:623)				
Class Name:					
Duration:	0				
Max Registrations:	0 (per session, $0 = $ unlimited)				
Default Instructor:	¥				
	Other external instructor				
Class Time Zone:	NZ v				
Resources:					
Comments:					
	<i>b</i>				
Display Sequence:	20 🌲 Tip				
🖺 Save 🖉 🤇	Cancel				

Figure 5-14B- Events & Activities: Class Add Complete

The listed fields in the **Event Class** screen include the following:

Events & Activities: Event Class				
Element	Description			
Class Name:	The descriptive name given for the selected Class.			
Duration:	The estimated time it will take to attend the selected Class, entering whole numbers into the hours and/or minutes field(s).			
	Note: You may enter a value greater than 60 in the minutes field. The system will automatically translate this value into an Hours: Minutes value, which is visible after the record is saved and you return to the Event Class Edit page.			
Max Registration:	Enter the maximum number of User registrations that can be accepted by the system for a selected Class/Session.			
Default Instructor:	Provides a validated list of Instructors as defined under Users & Groups: User Records. Alternatively, use the Other External Instructor fill-in field to enter and Instructor name for someone outside the system.			
Class Time zone:	Default time zone for the Class. This is much more important for Webinars or Streaming Events where attendees may span multiple time zones.			
Resources:	Free form field that allows Event Managers to describe a list of resources (materials, collateral, equipment, personnel, etc.) that are anticipated and should be gathered by Instructors before conducting their Events. This information will only be seen by Instructors when reviewing their assigned Events.			
Comments:	Free form field that provides additional details about the Event as needed. This information will only be seen by Instructors when reviewing their assigned Events.			
Display Sequence:	This integer value determines the sequence order of the display listing for all			

At any time you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.

Once your new Class has been created, it will be displayed on the Classes sub-tab in the first position, but will not possess any detail in terms of when it is offered. Therefore, a session needs to be added that will specify times and dates.

5.3.1.4 Classes: Edit a Class

Once a class has been defined, it can easily be edited by an Administrator or Event Manager. When in the event record, simply click on the Classes sub-tab, and click the **Edit Class** link to the right of the Class name. Use the Action buttons at the bottom to **Save** or **Cancel** your updates.

EVENTS: EVENT	CLASS EDIT
Event: Mobile Learn	ning Overview (Id:512)
Class Name:	Mobile Learning Overview
Duration:	1 (1 hour(s) 30 (1 minute(s)
Max Registrations:	25 (per session, 0 = unlimited)
Default Instructor:	¥
	Saltsman, Paul
Class Time Zone:	US/Eastern v
Resources:	You will need to bring with you your mobile device and laptop.
Comments:	Please arrive on time.
Display Sequence:	10 🗘 Tip
	Delete this class
🖺 Save 🔗 🖉	Cancel

Figure 5-14C- Events & Activities: Class Edit



Note: If an Event has multiple defined Classes, they will be listed in numerical order starting with "Class 1" followed by "Class 2", etc. The displayed order can be updated by changing the "Display Sequence" field value at the Class level.

Delete this class	Check this box and click Save to delete the class.
(checkbox)	WARNING: This is a destructive action and all class details previously
	recorded/earned will be deleted from the system.

5.3.1.5 Classes: Add a Session

Location custom: Cake?: Location Field: Custom 4: Custom 5:

This function allows Administrators and Event Managers to add one or more Sessions to a Class for the selected Event and define all of the Session-level specifics concerning "when" and "where". When an Administrator or Event Manager clicks the **Add Session** link, the **Event Class Session Edit** screen will display and will already be populated with general information defined at the Class-level plus provide fields to define the Session Date and Session Time. Different fields are available for ILT sessions than for Webinars sessions. Administrators can either accept or change any of the supplied location, registration, instructor or time zone information as needed. Click the **Save** button to commit the Session details, the **Reset** button to start over or the **Cancel** button to abort the Session Edit Screen and return to the Class Record display.

EVENTS: EVENT CL	ASS SESSION E	DIT			
Session Registratio	en Enrollment	Resources I	nstructors	Seat Allocation	Notes
Figure 5	-15A– Events &	Activities: Ad	ld a New S	ession Tabs	
Session Registre	ation Enrollment Res	ources Instructors	Seat Allocation	Notes	
ILT Event: Mobile L	office A Select (1d:512) Conference Room 1	Class: Mobile Learni n	ng Overview (Id:6	564)	
Session Title: Session Group: Session Date: Session Time: Time Zone: Primary Instructor:	Create event session gro 11-May-2010	v v		Auto generate	
Max Registrations: Session Status: Custom Fields	Saltsman, Paul 25 Pending • Approved	ed) () Cancelled () Delete	2		

Save Master Calendar Generate Session QR Code Create Linked Session
Figure 5-15B- Events & Activities: Add a New Session

EVENTS: E	VENT CLAS	S SESSION F	EGISTRAT	ION						
Session	Registration	Enrollment	Resources	Instructors	Sea	t Allocation	Notes			
ILT Event: Mo	obile Learnin	g Overview (Id	512) Class:	Mobile Learni	ng Ove	erview (Id:6	64) Sess	ion: (Id:11226) 11-May-2	010 03:00 PM
← Finished	ł	-								
Open Regist	ration Date:									
Or Before S	Start - Days:	0 🇘 Hr	s: 0 ‡	Mins: 0	* *					
Close Regist	ration Date:		$\boxtimes \oslash$							
Or Before S	Start - Days:	0 🌲 Hr	s: 0 📫) Mins: 0	* *					
Aud	dience Field:				*	Use Default				
Audience	Restriction:									

Figure 5-15C- Events & Activities: Add a New Session-Registration

EVENTS:	EVENT CLA	SS SESSION	ENROLLMEN	т					
Session	Registration	Enrollment	Resources	Instructors	Seat Allocation	Notes			
LT Event:	1obile Learni	ng Overview (Id	l:512) Class: M	lobile Learnin	Ig Overview (Id:6	64) Sessi	on: (Id:11226)	11-May-201	03:00 PM
H Finish	ed								
	ed		Change Stat	cus / Remove					
Id User (Country Att	ended No Show	Change Stat	us / Remove	ed Denied Remo	ve Assi	gned/Requested	d	

Figure 5-15D- Events & Activities: Add a New Session-Enrollment



Figure 5-15E- Events & Activities: Add a New Session-Resources

VENTS:	EVENT CLAS	S SESSION	INSTRUCTO	RS				
Session	Registration	Enrollment	Resources	Instructors	Seat Allocation	Notes		
Event: March Test Event 1 (Id:507) Class: Class 1 (Id:500) Session: (Id:4702) 29-Dec-2016 10:32 AM Image: Class 1 (Id:500) Class: Class 1 (Id:500) Session: (Id:4702) 29-Dec-2016 10:32 AM Image: Class 1 (Id:500) Class: Class 1 (Id:500) Session: (Id:4702) 29-Dec-2016 10:32 AM Image: Class 1 (Id:500) Class: Class 1 (Id:500) Session: (Id:4702) 29-Dec-2016 10:32 AM Image: Class 1 (Id:500) Class: Class 1 (Id:500) Session: (Id:4702) 29-Dec-2016 10:32 AM Image: Class 1 (Id:500) Class: Class 1 (Id:500) Session: (Id:4702) 29-Dec-2016 10:32 AM								
Additiona	al Session Inst	ructors			Ad	ditional Session Coordinators		
Add instr	uctor			v	A	dd coordinator	v	
+ Add						+ Add		

Figure 5-15F- Events & Activities: Add a New Session-Instructors

EVENTS: EVENT CLASS SESSION EDIT
Information Registration Notes
Event: Severe Weather Procedures
Class: Severe Weather Procedures (duration: 0:30)
Session Notes:
🖺 Save 🖉 Cancel 🛗 Master Calendar

Figure 5-15H- Events & Activities: Add a New Session-Notes

Events & Activities: Event Class Session - ILT Element Description Location: This optional field allows a specific location to be associated with this Event. Click the **select** link to choose from a list of locations previously set up in the system under the Events - Event Locations area. The Location information will be displayed to the User on the Event Session Registration page. Session Title: The specific title given to the session to differentiate it from other sessions or classes. Session Date: The specific date this Session will be offered. To enter a session date, click the calendar icon next to the Session Date entry fields and choose the date you desire. Session Time: The specific time this Session will be offered. To enter a time, select the hours and the minutes from the drop-downs provided. **Time Zone:** Specified time zone for the Session. This defaults to the time zone specified at the Class level, but can be changed here for this particular Session. **Primary Instructor:** Provides a validated list of Instructors as defined under User Records. This field defaults to the Instructor specified at the Class level, but can be changed here for this particular Session. Alternatively, use the Other fill-in field to enter an Instructor name for someone outside the system. Max Registrations: Defines the maximum number of User registrations that can be accepted for this particular Session. This field defaults to the number entered at the Class level, but can be changed here for this Session. Time zone: Specified time zone for the Session. This defaults to the Time zone specified at the Class level, but can be changed here for this particular Session. Session Status: Indicates the Status of the Session. Pending Approved Cancelled Events & Activities: Event Class Session - Webinars

The listed fields in the Event Class Session Edit screen under the session tab include the following:

Element	Description
Session Title:	The specific title given to the session to differentiate it from other sessions or classes.
Session Date:	The specific date this Session will be offered. To enter a session date, click the calendar icon next to the Session Date entry fields and choose the date you desire.
Session Time:	The specific time this Session will be offered. To enter a time, select the hours and the minutes from the drop-downs provided.
Time Zone:	Specified time zone for the Session. This defaults to the Time zone specified at the Class level, but can be changed here for this particular Session.
(WebEx) URL:	The URL address that the User will use to access the Webinar Event.

WebEx Host:	Provides a validated list of Instructors as defined under Users & Groups: User Records. This field defaults to the Instructor specified at the Class level, but can be changed here for this particular Session.
Max Registrations:	Defines the maximum number of registrations that can be accepted for this particular Session. This field defaults to the number entered at the Class level, but can be changed here for this Session.
Session Status:	Indicates the Status of the Session. Pending Approved Cancelled
Custom Fields:	Set up Custom Fields for different event needs, the Search function will also run on these.

Event Type:	Webinar
* Event Name:	
Description:	
	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Synopsis:	
Category:	OP Testing
Webinar Type:	Other v
Require Approval:	Yes • No
n OPCV/Mobile Catalogs:	🔿 Yes 🧿 No
In OPEC Catalog:	🔿 Yes 🧿 No
OPPM Assignable:	• Yes 🔿 No
Auto Assign Sessions:	🔾 Yes 💿 No 🛛 tīp
User Select Sessions:	O Yes ◯ No  ❶ Tip
User Change Sessions:	🔿 Yes 💿 No
Allow User Rating:	🔿 Yes 💿 No
Assigned Survey:	Ψ
Credit Hours:	0.0
Certification:	Ψ
OPPM Recommendable:	• Yes O No
Use Seat Allocation:	• Yes O No
Status:	S Active 🔿 Inactive 🔿 Delete
ustom Fields	
Bouncy castle?:	
Seats?:	Ŧ

Figure 5-15I- Events & Activities: Add a New Session Webinar

At any time you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.

#### **5.3.1.6 Classes: Session Enrollment**

One of the key functions of the Event feature set is Enrollment, a link under the Classes sub-tab menu.

EVENT	VENTS: INSTRUCTOR LED TRAINING														
≣ In	formation	Class	es Assi	gnments	Advanced	Triggers P	rerequisites	Certificates	Games						
Event: C	vent: Christmas Party (Id:433)														
+ Add	d Class	Revise	Schedule	III Ma	ster Calendar	J								τ.	SHOW Past Sessions
Class	: 12 Days of	Chris	tmas!		Edit Class Add	Session Clas	s Scheduling								
Id	Session Dat	e 🖨	Status	Time	Time Zone	Location	Instructor	Max.	Attended	No Show	Approved	Pending	Waitlisted	Denied	
4684	30-Dec-201	6	Approved	10:45 am	Europe/Londo	on Cair Parave	Cherokee, Sas	sy unlimited	0	0	1	0	0	0	Enrollment
4576	31-Dec-201	6	Approved	10:00 am	US/Central	Macon	the Builder, Bo	b unlimited	0	0	2	0	0	0	Enrollment

Figure 5-16- Events & Activities: Session Enrollment

Clicking the enrollment link located to the far right of any defined Session will display a list of all registered Users/Learners for the selected Session and allow Administrators and Event Managers to update the Event Status for the listed Users/Learners including updating their Attendance Status for that Event. Administrators and Event Managers can also retract a previously granted Event Registration Approval by changing a User's status back to "Pending", or remove them from the Enrollment List.

E٧	EVENTS: EVENT CLASS SESSION ENROLLMENT												
Event: Severe Weather Procedures Session: Sep-25-2014 at 9:00 am													
CI	Class: Severe Weather Procedures Maximur					num: 10 people							
	<b>€</b> F	inished											
S	iess	ion Enrollment	t										
					Chang	je Status / F	lemove						
		User	Status	Attended	No Show	Approved	Pending	Deny	Remove	Assigned/Requested			
	1	Harris, Paige	Approved							Aug-6-2014 16:34			
(	Up	odate Status	Approve all per	nding (limit 10)	Mark a	ll attended	Clear all						

Figure 5-17- Events & Activities: Event Class Session Enrollment

All updates on this screen are made by clicking the corresponding checkbox to the right of the User/Learner's name. For added convenience, links are available at the bottom of the screen including "Approval all pending (limit xx)" registrations, **Mark all attended** and **Clear All**; selecting these links will add (or remove) checkboxes to every listed User/Learner. Once all the checkboxes have been marked as needed, the Administrator or Event Manager must click the **Update Status** button at the lower left to record the changes then click the **Finished** button to exit the screen.

#### 5.3.1.7 Classes: Approvals

There are several ways for Event Managers to approve pending Event assignment requests:

• From the Classes sub-tab, click the **enrollment** link to the far right of the specific session you need. All Users assigned to the Session will be listed, along with their approval status. You may change an individual User's status by clicking the **Approve** checkbox for that User, or you may click the **Approve** 

**all pending** (limit xx) link at the bottom to change all Users with Pending status to Approved status simultaneously. Click the **Update Status** button to ensure your changes are made. Click the **Finished** button to return to the Classes sub-tab page.

From the Course Manager Home page under the Pending area, click the Approve link next to Event
registrations pending approval. You may change an individual User's status by clicking the Approve
checkbox for that User, or you may click the Approve All link at the bottom to change all Users with
Pending status to Approved status simultaneously. Click the Update Status button to ensure your
changes are made. Click the Finished button to return to the Home page.

#### 5.3.1.8 Classes: Waiting Lists/Approvals

When an Event Session is created, you can specify the number of available seats (Max Registrations). These seats will be filled in two ways:

- An Event Manager clicks the **Class Scheduling** link, selects a User and assigns them to a specific session. If a session seat is available, the User will be added to the list of assignees, with an Approved status. If a session seat is not available, the User will be added to the waiting list for the Session.
- Whenever a User is removed from an assigned session, either by a Manager or by an individual User when they select an alternative session to attend, that seat becomes available and the system automatically places the next User on the waiting list into that available seat.
- A User self-registers for a particular Session. If a session seat is available, the User will be added to the list of assignees, with an Approved status*. If a session seat is not available, the User may see other available Sessions he/she can register for.

**Tip:** In the case where Users are assigned to an Event by way of a Skill Profile or Group-level assignment, they are NOT automatically assigned into available Sessions that may have been set up. This is so that the Event Manager can best determine the total number of Sessions that may be needed to accommodate the total number of assignees and the size of the classroom sessions that may be needed. Once these Sessions are established in the system, the Manager can click the **Assign** link to the right of the Missing Session Assignments notation at the bottom right of each Class and select the Users to assign to the session.

**Note:** In order for Users to self-register, they must have already been assigned to the Event (i.e. pre-authorized), or the Event itself has to be one that does not require approval. If the Event requires approval, a User can Request Enrollment but will remain in a Pending status until a Manager approves his/her request to attend. Also, Users can "unassign" themselves from a particular session. This action does not unassign them from the assigned Event and Class. It simply takes them out of the actual session and adds them to the Missing Session Assignments pool until they select a new session or a Manager assigns them to a new session.

#### Waitlists

When an Event Session is created, you can specify the number of available seats (Max Registrations). These seats will be filled in two ways:

- An Event Manager clicks the **Class Scheduling** link, selects a User and assigns them to a specific session. If a session seat is available, the User will be added to the list of assignees, with an Approved status. If a session seat is not available, the User will be added to the waiting list for the Session.
- Whenever a User is removed from an assigned session, either by a Manager or by an individual User when they select an alternative session to attend, that seat becomes available and the system automatically places the next User on the waiting list into that available seat.
- A User self-registers for a particular Session. If a session seat is available, the User will be added to the list of assignees, with an Approved status*. If a session seat is not available, the User may see other available Sessions he/she can register for.

**Tip:** In the case where Users are assigned to an Event by way of a Skill Profile or Group-level assignment, they are NOT automatically assigned into available Sessions that may have been set up. This is so that the Event Manager can best determine the total number of Sessions that may be needed to accommodate the total number of assignees and the size of the classroom sessions that may be needed. Once these Sessions are established in the system, the Manager can click the **Assign** link to the right of the Missing Session Assignments notation at the bottom right of each Class and select the Users to assign to the session.

**Note:** In order for Users to self-register, they must have already been assigned to the Event (i.e. pre-authorized), or the Event itself has to be one that does not require approval. If the Event requires approval, a User can Request Enrollment but will remain in a Pending status until a Manager approves his/her request to attend. Also, Users can "unassign" themselves from a particular session. This action does not unassign them from the assigned Event and Class. It simply takes them out of the actual session and adds them to the Missing Session Assignments pool until they select a new session or a Manager assigns them to a new session.

#### **Approvals**

There are several ways for Event Managers to approve pending Event assignment requests:

- From the Classes sub-tab, click the enrollment link to the far right of the specific session you need. All
  Users assigned to the Session will be listed, along with their approval status. You may change an
  individual User's status by clicking the Approve checkbox for that User, or you may click the Approve all
  pending (limit xx) link at the bottom to change all Users with Pending status to Approved status
  simultaneously. Click the Update Status button to ensure your changes are made. Click the Finished
  button to return to the Classes sub-tab page.
- From the Course Manager Home page under the Pending area, click the Approve link next to Event
  registrations pending approval. You may change an individual User's status by clicking the Approve
  checkbox for that User, or you may click the Approve All link at the bottom to change all Users with
  Pending status to Approved status simultaneously. Click the Update Status button to ensure your
  changes are made. Click the Finished button to return to the Home page.

#### **5.3.2 Events & Activities: Assignments**

From this Submenu, Administrators and Event Managers can assign one or more Event/Session Coordinators for the selected Event, and can select and assign Users (or any Groups/Job Codes) as well.

#### 5.3.2.1 Assignments: Event/Session Coordinators

Allows Administrators and Event Managers to select and assign one or more Event/Session Coordinators to oversee the selected Event. Clicking the **Assign** link displays a list of defined OnPoint Administrators who can be associated with the current Event/Session record; more than one Event/Session Coordinator may be named (one at a time) from the list. Event/Session Coordinators are pulled from the available pool of defined OnPoint administrators and, as such, when they are referenced to a particular Event/Session, it is possible to associate and retrieve any Administrator details like email address or telephone numbers that may need to be supplied to Users/Learners looking to register for or change their registration for a particular Event/Session. To add an Event/Session Coordinator, select their name from the displayed list of Available Coordinators on the right and click the **Finished** button to exit the screen.

#### 5.3.2.2 Assignments: User/Group Assignments

Allows Administrators and Event Managers to select and assign Users or Groups/Job Codes to the selected Event/Session. Clicking the **Assign** link displays an alphabetical list of OnPoint Users who can be associated with the current Event record; select as many users as needed - up to the set registration limit. To narrow the

displayed list of Users (or Groups), use the **Filter** button at the top right of the Available Users list to update your display criteria as needed.

To select Users/Learners, mark the corresponding checkbox next to their name as it appears on the list of Available Users and then click the **Assign** button to move those selections to the Registered Users side of the table (on the left side). When finished, click the **Finished** button to record your selections.

EVENTS: EVENT ASSIGN USERS Event: Severe Weather Procedures			
✓ Finished	Assign/Unassign	Check items to as	ssign or remove and click Assign/Unassign
Registered Users (check to remove)	Tilter Available Users	(check to assign)	Tilter Groups
- filtered list -	<u> </u>	- filtered list -	
Alexis, Debra	Admin, OnP	oint	
Allgood, Tracy	🗖 Admin, Triva	antis	
ameridian, tester	Ambarian, Ja	anel	$\overline{}$
Anderson, Angela			Click to toggle between a "Groups
Aughenbaugh, Paul			list, or a list of
Barry, Elhadj			users
Bauer, Sara			
Bauer, Sara			

Figure 5-18- Events & Activities: Assign Users



**Tip:** If your organization has hundreds or thousands of Users, and "Available Users" list will apply a default filter by the letter "A" in order to shorten the list when it is first displayed. Click the **Filter** button to change this to a different filter choice, or use the **Groups** button to see a list of Groups in order to make an assignment to all its members at once.



**Tip:** Any automatic assignments that are associated with a particular Event - for instance a Pre-Event Course, a Post-Event Assessment or a Notification about the new Event Assignment will then be assigned to the new Users.

#### 5.3.3 Events & Activities: Triggers

From the Triggers sub-tab, Administrators and Event Managers can set up automated notifications as well as select and assign any assignable system object to Users based on the following conditions:

- Approved-For-Event-Session
- Assigned-To-Event
- Assigned-To-Event-Session
- Complete-Event
- Create-Pending-Event-Session
- Denied-Event-Session
- Event-No-Show
- Event-Session-Cancelled
- Event-Session-Changed
- Instructor-Assigned
- Instructor-Unassigned
- Recertify-Event
- Recommend-Event
- Reinforce-Recommendation-Event
- Removed-From-Event-Session
- Request-Event-Session

Clicking the Trigger Action dropdown, choose the condition you wish to create the trigger for, then click the **Add** button.

EVENTS: INST	RUCTOR LE	D TRAINING	G							
Information	Classes	Assignments	Advanced	Triggers	Prerequ	isites	Certificates	Games		
Event: February	Fest Event 2	(Id:492) 🚺 Tip	)					Trigger Action:	A	+ Add
Approved-For-	Event-Sessio	n	Standard Not	fication					٩	
Notifications:	Title		Destination	Notify Email	SMS PU	sh Stat	us When	Calendar	Approved-For-Event-Session	
Notifications.	Approved Eo	r Event Session	Licer		5115 14	Acti	vo Immediatel	- Calcinaar	Assigned-To-Event	
	Approved to	Event Jession	0361	•		Acu		,	Assigned-To-Event-Session	
									Complete-Event	
Assigned-To-E	vent		Standard Not	fication					Create-Pending-Event-Session	
									Denied-Event-Session	
Assigned To F	want Cassian		Chandrard Matt	fication					Event-No-Show	
Assigned-10-E	vent-Session		Standard Not	rication					Event-Session-Cancelled	
									Event-Session-Changed	
Denied-Event-	Session		Standard Noti	fication					Instructor-Assigned	
									Instructor-Unassigned	
									Recertify-Event	
Event-Session-	Changed		Standard Not	fication					Recommend-Event	
	-								Reinforce-Recommendation-Event	
									Removed-From-Event-Session	
Instructor-Ass	igned		Standard Not	fication					Request-Event-Session	

Figure 5-19- Events & Activities: Trigger Action Conditions

### 5.3.3.1 Triggers: Add Notification

Selecting "Add Notification" allows you to set up a Notification, including the message you want to convey, who the message will be sent to, how it will be sent – via portal (default) and also optionally to the selected recipients' email and/or Push Notification. Notifications can be created that drive prerequisites, post-

event assignments, and reminders. Various database fields are available (down the right side of the screen) to be used within the message template text. Simply have your cursor inside the message window then click the file name desired. Click **Save** when you have completed the Notification creation, or **Cancel** to exit without saving any changes.

Trigger:	Assigned-To-Event-Session	Fields Deep Links
Title:	Assigned To Event Session	Click on Manageria the list to add them to the measure
4essage Tex	t Push/SMS Text	Click on items in the list to add them to the message Event event_id event_type event_desc event_synopsis category_code status
Send To: Via:	User  User  Standard Notification  Email  SMS (140 characters limit, no HTML)  Mobile Push (200 character limit, No HTML)	registration_start registration_end custom1 custom2 custom3 custom4 custom5 ce_eredit custom6 custom6
When: Calendar: ed Sessions: Status:	Immediately       •       On       Trigger       •         Days       Hours       Minutes       •       •       •         0       •       •       •       •       •       •       •         None       •       (Attach a calendar update to the notification email)       •       Execute trigger (users only)       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •       •	custom9 custom10 user_rating <b>Event Class</b> class_id event_id class_name class_location duration

Figure 5-20- Events & Activities: Define Notifications for an Event

### 5.3.3.2 Triggers: Add Assignment/Recommendation

Allows you to select and assign published online Courses, Assessment Sets, learning Nuggets, Skill Profiles, Events, or Activities to Users who meet one of the 3 conditions: Assigned-to-Event, Assigned-to-Event-Session, or Completed-Event. Simply select the Object Type from the dropdown and a list of available items of that type will appear. Scroll through the list and select one item. [If you select the wrong item, simply make another selection to overwrite the first.] Click **Save**. The assignment will then be listed. Multiple assignments can be made by following these steps again.

o assign an objec st on the right. Yo	t please select the object type and click on an item in the ou may filter the list of available items by name or category.	Please select an object type Category:					
Trigger:	Assigned-To-Event-Session	Name:		Go			
Action:	• Assign O Recommend						
Object Type:	•						
Object Name:							
elay Assignment:	0 🚖 day(s) - Assignments only						
Status:	Active     Inactive						

Figure 5-21– Events & Activities: Add Assignments

**Remove Action**: To remove an action, simply click the **Remove Action** link. All assignments and notifications associated with that condition header will be removed.

**Override Standard**: If a Standard Notification has been setup, it will display here. You may use it, or override it by defining your own. Remember to click Override Standard: No if you wish to override it. The link will change to display Override Standard: Yes. Otherwise, any triggered notification you create will be an additional notification rather than a replacement.

#### **5.3.3.3 Events & Activities: Advanced**

The Advanced tab allows you to set the Thumbnail image, display tags, and Meta Tags.

Events & Activities: Advanced Tab					
Element	Description				
Thumbnail Image:	Allows to change the thumbnail image for the Assessment Set. Thumbnail image must be uploaded in the administration tab				
Meta Tags:	Adding meta tags to Assessment Sets allow for quick references in custom UI's and searches.				
Oppoint Digital Inc	All Dighte Decorried				

Display Tags:

Adding Display Tags to Assessment Sets is an option for selecting which items will be displayed in a Hierarchy Node. Display Tags can be established and then the tags can be assigned to specific content to display in one or more Hierarchy Nodes.

EVENTS: INSTR	UCTOR L	ED TRAINING	6							
Information	Classes	Assignments	Advanced	Triggers	Prerequisites	Certificates	Games			
Event: Christmas F	Party (Id:433	3)						Advanced	Meta Tag	gs
Thumbnail Image:	(click imag	e to manage)								
	Assign Thu	ımbnail								



### 5.3.3.4 Triggers: Event Notifications

The choice of database tables available from which to select fields for insertion into notifications changes when you are sending a notification for an Event assignment or completion condition, versus a notification for a specific Session assignment. This is in keeping with the hierarchal organization where an Event is the most general concept and a Session is the most specific. Therefore, information such as Location would not make sense for an Event-level notification, but does makes sense at the Class-level, or perhaps a specific one-time-only Location at the Session-level, to override the Class default.

Fields from two database tables are available to select from when sending a notification regarding an Event:

- User Fields
- (Event) Fields

Fields from those, as well as two additional tables (four in total), are available when sending a notification regarding a Session assignment:

- User Fields
- (Event) Fields
- Event Session
- Event Session Location

Trigger:	Complete-Event	Fields Deep Links
Title:	Event Completion	
Message Text	Push/SMS Text	Click on items in the list to add them to the messa User Fields
User [tbl_us completed t	exuser_first_name] [tbl_user.user_last_name] has he event [tbl_event.event_name].	user_first_name user_last_name user_title user_organization user_email Store Favourite colour Blue Custom Field 5 Custom Field 5
Send To:	User *	Custom Field 7 Custom Field 8 Custom Field 9
Via:	Standard Notification Email Registre for the second secon	Custom Field 10 Custom Field 11 Custom Field 12
When	Mobile Push (200 character limit, No HTML)	Custom Field 13 Custom Field 14 Custom Field 15 Custom Field 16
Statue	Days     Hours     Minutes       0     0     0       0     0	Custom Field 17 Custom Field 18 Custom Field 19 Custom Field 20
status.	Prouve C announe	Fields event_id cust_id

Figure 5-23- Events & Activities: Notifications



**Note:** The Event database, Class database and Session database tables share some common field names. When you are selecting fields for inclusion into your Session notifications, determine whether you need to include information specific to that session. If so, select a field from the Event Session table to provide details such as Instructor or Maximum Registration that may be specific to this particular session, but different than the "default" values found in the Event Classes table.

The listed fields available in all four tables include the following:

	Events & Activities: Trigger Notifications User Field
Field (Event-level info)	Description
user_first_name:	User's first name
user_last_name:	User's last name
user_title:	User's title
user_organization:	User's organization
user_email:	User's email

Events & Activities: Trigger Notifications Event Field					
Field (Event-level info)	Description				
event_id:	OP ID for Event				
cust_id:	Customer number from server's root directory				
event_type:	Event type: 1=ILT, 2=Webinar				
event_name:	Name of Event				
event_desc:	Event description				
event_synopsis:	vent synopsis				
category_code:	OP ID for category of Event				
user_select_session:	Is user allowed to select their Sessions? Y/N				
require_approval:	Does Event require approval to attend? Y/N				
create_date:	Date Event was created in system				
create_user_id:	OP ID for user who created Event				
update_date:	Date of last update to Event				
update_user_id:	OP ID for user who last updated the event				
status:	Status of Event				
auto_assign:	Is Event set to auto assign users to sessions? Y/N				
for_sale:	Is Event in OPEC catalog? Y/N				

in_opcv_cat:	Is Event in OPCV catalog? Y/N			
registration_start:	Registration start date			
registration_end:	egistration end date			
custom1:	ifo from custom field #1 (ex: 'Facilitator')			
custom2:	nfo from custom field #2			
custom3:	info from custom field #3			
custom4:	nfo from custom field #4			
custom5:	Info from custom field #5			
certificate:	Title of assigned certificate			

<b>Events &amp; Activities: Trigger Notifications Event Class Field</b>				
Field (Class-level info)	Description			
class_id:	OP ID for Class			
cust_id:	Customer number from the server's root directory			
event_id:	OP ID for Event			
class_name:	Name of Class			
class_location:	Default location of Class			
duration:	Duration of Class (in minutes)			
max_registration:	Maximum number of registrants in this Class			
instructor:	Instructor's Name			
event_timezone:	Time zone of Class			
conference_server:	Default dial-in conference phone number for this class; note that this is only valid data for Webinars or Live Streaming sessions.			
conference_room:	Default password/ID number given on the dial-in conference phone number to access this class; note that this is only valid data for Webinars or Live Streaming sessions.			
resources:	Resources (LCD projectors, screens, etc.) selected for Class			
comments:	Comments			
sequence:	Display sequence of Class in Class listing			

#### **Events & Activities: Trigger Notifications Event Session Field**

Field (Session-level info)	Description			
session_id:	OP ID for Session			
cust_id:	Customer number from server's root directory			
event_id:	OP ID for Event			
class_id:	OP ID for Class			
location_id:	OP ID for Location if Location selected from 'tree'			
resource_cal_id:	OP ID for a resource (i.e. LCD projector) at a specific Calendar date/time			
class_location:	Physical location of the session. Note: This may be different than the default location assigned at the Class-level above.			
start_date:	Date and time of Session			
<b>max_registration:</b> Maximum number of registrants in this Session. Note: This may be different the default maximum number of attendees allowed as assigned at the Class above.				
<b>instructor:</b> Instructor's Name. Note: This may be different than the default instructor as at the Class-level above.				
event_timezone:	Time zone of this Session. Note: This may be different than the default time zone assigned at the Class-level above.			
conference_server:	Dial-in conference phone number for this session; note that a) this is only valid data for Webinars or Live Streaming sessions, and b) this may be a different number than the phone number assigned at the Class-level above.			
conference_room:	Password/ID number given on the dial-in conference phone number to access this session; note that a) this is only valid data for Webinars or Live Streaming sessions, and b) this may be a different number than the password/ ID number assigned at the Class-level above.			

#### **5.3.3.5 Events & Activities: Prerequisites**

From this sub-menu, Administrators can establish any requisite assignments they want Users/Learners to complete before accessing this Event. Prerequisites can be any object type in the system (Course, Assessment Set, Nugget, Event, or Activity).

EVENTS: INSTRUCTOR LED TRAINING						
Information Classes	Assignments	Advanced	Triggers	Prerequisites	Certificates	Games
Event: EM Event (Id:425)						
<b>Event Prerequisites</b>		Assign: Cour	se   Assess	ment Set   Nugg	et   Event   /	Activity

Figure 5-24- Events & Activities: Prerequisites

#### **5.3.3.6 Events & Activities: Certificates**

From this submenu, Administrators and Event Managers can select any stored certificate from the dropdown to associate with this particular Event. Once a certificate design is selected, the system will associate an earned certificate for all Users who complete the Event. The system will track all certificates earned by Users, and track the results of earned, passed/completed, printed, and associated certificate ID's for all Users. Administrators can access this detail at any time.

EVENTS: I	EVENTS: INSTRUCTOR LED TRAINING								
Information I	formation Classes Assignments Advanced Triggers Prerequisites Certificates Games								
Event: EM Ev	<b>vent</b> (Id:425)								
Certificate:	Store Event Certi	ficates				× *			
Dynamic Ce	Dynamic Certificates								
Generate C	Generate Certificates								
Last Name: TFilter									
Name Certif	Name Certificate Date View As								

Figure 5-25- Events & Activities: Certificates



Note: Certificate designs are uploaded to the Content - Library area of Course Manager.

#### 5.3.3.7 Events & Activities: Games

The Games sub-tab allows you to add Game Points within a Skill Profile by selecting Add Game Points.

Events & Activities: Skills & Games					
Element Description					
Game Points:	Administrators can add Game Points within a Skill Profile. By clicking Add Game Points you will see a drop down menu with the option of Points for Completion and a field to enter in the number of points to be earned.				

### 5.6 Events & Activities: Registration Overview

This selection provides a list of all Event Registration Requests (ILT or Webinar) that are pending Administrative approval. Requests are listed in reverse date order (most recent first) and the displayed list includes the Class and Session requested and User.

An Administrator may approve, deny, or Remove the request via a simple check box.

EVENTS: EVENT REGISTR	ATION					
Pending Event Registration Requests						
Event	User (click for info)	Action				
Business Process Analys	is Alexis, Debra	Approve	Deny			
Business Process Analys	is Allgood, Tracy	Approve	Deny			
Fire Safety Training	Boop, Betty	Approve	Deny			
Annual Fire Safety Class	Dye, Melissa	Approve	Deny			
Business Process Analys	is Palmer, Mike	Approve	Deny			
Business Process Analys	is Williams, Matilda	Approve	Deny			
Update Status	Approve All	Deny All   Cle	ar All			

Figure 5-26- Events & Activities: Registrations Pending Approval

This function is also available for an Administrator from the Home page of Course Manager where any Pending Requests would be noted. Click the **Approve** link to view the same page.

Hor	me 🔋 Help 🚺 Logout		Users & G	roups	Content	Assessmen	nts	Skills E	vents & Activities	Notifications
G 🎝	OINT MANAGER									
Welcom	e to the Learning Server C	ourse Mana	ger.							
	Working Customer									
	Working Customer: OnPo	int Digital, 1	nc.						Change Worki	ng Customer
	Login Information									
	Logged in as: Administrat	tor, OnPoint						Administ	rative Role: Root /	Administrator
	Pending									
	Course requests pending Assessment Set requests Nugget requests pending	approval: pending ap approval:	proval:	None None None						
	User activity completions	ng approva. :		Approve						
	Delete requests pending:			None						
	License Information									
	Administrators: Performance Managers:	111 (41 use 101 (21 use	ed) ed)		Use Rec	ers/Learners: cords:	6025 500	(291 used (12 used)	0	
	Learning Server Informati	on								
	OPLS Version: 3.4.1.8								Thu 20 Aug 2009	09:15 (EDT)
		Active	Sessions	Refre	esh I M	Memory Cache	e I	Versions		

Figure 5-27- Events & Activities: Pending Approval

### **5.8 Events & Activities: Activities**

This selection displays the Events & Activities: Activities List, a database listing of all current Activities defined in the Course Manager database. In the OnPoint environment, Activities are considered as "to do list" items completed outside the learning system, but in conjunction with taking a course or attending an Instructor-led class. Assigned Activities might include such actions as:

- Completing an application process or filing necessary paperwork
- Attending a convention, trade show or industry conference
- Participating in an off-site meeting or planning session
- Attaining a professional certification level
- Getting a commercial driver's license

Activities can either be tracked individually or made a necessary component of earning a Skill, Skill Set or assigned Skill Profile. Each assigned Activity includes all of the necessary information about successfully completing the Activity to meet the level of expectations established by its originator. From the main Activities list, you may:

- Select an Activity record from the List to review or edit by clicking on the Activity Name field;
- Click the Add Activity button to create a new Activity; or
- Use the Filter button to narrow your search for a specific Activity.

ACTIVI	TIES: ACTIVITIES Activity					
<b>T</b> Filt	TFilter     Id     Category     Name     ✓ Apply					
Id	Activity Name	Туре	Status			
A Super	-Duper Important Test Plan Thingie					
240	A Christmas List	Optional	Active			
255	Testing due dates	Required	Active			
241	What day is good for testing	Optional	Active			
April 20	15					
221	Make Coffee for Lara	Recommended	Active			
Bestest	, Mostest Awesomest Category Ever!					
256	Living Spaces Actiity	Required	Active			
188	Taking the hobbits to Isengard	Required	Active			
218	Upload Test Activity	Recommended	Active			

Figure 5-28- Events & Activities: Activities

#### **5.8.1 Events & Activities: Activities**

Activities are listed alphabetically by Activity Name. The Activity list displays the following:

Events & Activities: Activity - Main Page						
Element Description						
Activity Id:	The Id number associated to the activity.					
Activity Name:	The name of the Activity. Click the Activity Name to view more details about the Activity, or to edit the Activity record.					
Туре:	The type of Activity (Recommended, Required, or Optional).					
Status:	Indicates the Status of the Activity. • Active (Activity in use)					

	•	Inactive (Activity not in use) Request Delete (Activity no longer needed)
--	---	------------------------------------------------------------------------------

#### **Other Activity: List - Related Information:**

A few additional features can be found on the Events & Activities: Activities summary list screen:

- A. **Activity Count** At the bottom left of the Activity List table is an active count of all the current Activities managed in your Course Manager database.
- B. Color Keys Activities listed in the Activity List table are considered "Active" but may be flagged for "Inactive" or "Request Delete" by Level 4 or 5 administrators. A legend (or reminder key) may appear at the lower left of the Activity List table indicating at least one Activity has been marked as "Inactive" (the record will be highlighted in **Yellow**) or "Request Delete" (the record will be highlighted in **Pink**).



#### 5.8.1.1 Activities: Search for Activity Record

To find a specific Activity, you may:

- 1. Scroll through the list until you locate the Activity record
- 2. Use the Filter button to narrow your search for a specific Activity

Advanced Activity Filter			
Category Code:	Equals *		Ŧ
	Make Universal		
Activity Id:	Equals •		
Activity Name:	Includes •		
Description:	Includes •		
Activity Type:	Equals •		¥
Date Created:	On/After 🔻		
Status:	Equals *	Active ×	<b>V</b>
Will there also be cake?	Equals •		
✓ Apply X Close	🕽 Defa	ult 🦪	

Figure 5-30- Events & Activities: Search for Activity Record

Events & Activities: Activity Filter						
Element	Description					
Drop Down Options:	<ul> <li>equals - filters for a match of a letter or text string.</li> <li>begins with - filters for all Activities beginning with the criteria (e.g. type an A and get a list of all Activities beginning with A).</li> <li>includes - filters for all Activities that include the criteria (e.g. type "Baseball" and get all Activities that include that word).</li> <li>ends with - filters for all Activities ending with the criteria.</li> <li>not equal to - filters out everything matching this entry, (e.g. type an A and no Activities beginning with A will display).</li> <li>less than - filters all matches less than the criteria.</li> </ul>					
Category Code:	Search by a specific Category option selected in the drop-down menu; default selects no specific category and therefor shows all categories.					
Make Universal:	Select this box if you want all searches performed while you are logged in, to be set to this specific Category. This selection will maintain the filter until you clear it, or logout of Course Manager. <b>Note:</b> The most common search is filtered on Category. If you are working within a particular Category, you may want to select the "Make universal" checkbox so that all other searches will be filtered for that Category during your current session, until you clear the filter of logout.					
Activity Id:	Search by the Id number given to each activity.					
Activity Name:	Search by the name of the Activity.					
Description:	Search by the description of the Activity. Use the same drop down menu options as described above.					
Activity Type:	Search by the type of Activity (Required, Recommended, or Optional).					
Date Created:	Search by the date the Activity was created. Use the same drop down menu options as described above.					
Status:	Search by the Status of the Activity (Active, Inactive, Deleted).					
Custom Fields:	Search by any custom fields you have created.					

The Events & Activities: Activities Filter allows you to search for an Activity by any of the following search criteria:

When you are finished entering your selection criteria, click:

✓ Apply	To start the Search.				
<u></u>	To clear the criteria so that you can start again.				
C Default	To reset the criteria to the default options (All Active Courses).				
× Close	To close the Filter window and return to the User table list.				

### 5.8.1.2 Activities: Create New Activity Record

To create a new Activity record,	click the Add A	ctivity button at	it the top of the lis	st of Activities: Activitie	es; a new
Activity record screen will appea	ır.				

EVENTS & ACTIVITIES: ACTIV	ЛТҮ	
* Activity Name:		
* Description:		
Activity Type: O Requin	ed 🔿 Recommended 📀 Optional	
Estimated Duration: Hrs 0	Mins 0	
Category: OP Testin	g v	
Date Due:	🔛 🖉 or Completion Period 0	
Activity Closure:		
Auto Archive: 0	(# days, zero to disable)	
Can User Complete: 💿 Yes 🔾	) No	
Allow User Rating: 🔵 Yes 🧿	No	
Credit Hours: 0.0		
OPPM Assignable: 💿 Yes 🔾	No	
Available on Mobile: 🔵 Yes 🧕	I No	
Assigned Survey: Dog Even	t Survey 🗶 🔻	
Allow File Uploads: <b>O</b> None	○ Optional ○ Required	
Recommendable: 💿 Yes 🔾	No	
Status 💽 Active	○ Inactive ○ Delete	
Custom Fields		
Will there also be cake?:		
🖺 Save 🖉 Cancel	() Tips	

Figure 5-31- Events & Activities: Create New Activity Record

Enter the information for the following data fields:

Events & Activities: Add New Activity Record					
Element	Description				
Activity Name:	Enter the new Activity's name.				
Description:	Provide a description of the new Activity.				
Activity Type:	Select the type of Activity (Required, Recommended, or Optional).				
Estimated Duration:	Enter a numerical value indicating the estimated time (in minutes) to complete this Activity.				
Category:	Select the assigned Category from the drop-down to help in organization and searching.				
Date Due:	Date that the activity must be completed by.				
Or Completion Period:	Instead of selecting a date the activity is due, this field allows you to select the number of days that the user/learner has to complete the activity once they have started it.				
Activity Closure:	Provide a brief description of what constitutes closure of the Activity.				
Auto Archive:	When the event should archive based on a $\#$ of days after completion of the event. Leaving this as a zero will disable this function.				

Can User Complete:	Allows the user to log their own completion status without manager intervention.				
Allow User Rating:	Select Yes/No if you would like the option to allow users to give a rating on the activity.				
Credit Hours:	Enter the number of credit hours associated with the Event.				
OPPM Assignable:	Select 'Yes' to allow Performance Managers to assign the Activity through the Performance Manager application.				
Available on Mobile: (for CellCast customers)	Select 'Yes' to allow the Activity to display and be completed from the User's mobile device.				
Assigned Survey:	This field allows an Admin to select a general survey to be associated with this event. This field works in conjunction with user ratings so that when these are flagged, a user can go into OPCV and provide both a rating and comments after an Event has been completed.				
Allow File Uploads: (optional feature configured by OnPoint; call OnPoint support to enable file uploads)	<ul> <li>Options include:</li> <li>None - no file can be uploaded as part of the Activity completion process (default).</li> <li>Optional - a file can be uploaded as part of the Activity completion process, but it is not required for completion fo the Activity.</li> <li>Required - a file must be uploaded or the user will be unable to complete the Activity.</li> </ul>				
Recommendable:	Select Yes/No if this is allowed to be recommended by a Performance Manager.				
Status:	<ul> <li>Indicates the status of the Activity Record. Field defaults to "Active".</li> <li>Active (Activity is in use)</li> <li>Inactive (Activity not currently in use)</li> <li>Request Delete (Activity no longer needed)</li> </ul>				



**Note:** Unlike most other OnPoint object types, Activities have the completion option of Required, as well as Recommended and Optional. Since an activity is something occurring "outside of" the OnPoint Learning System, these options are intended to provide an additional level of flexibility to track items that may not be critical, but are still of interest to the organization or managers.



**Tip:** Use the **"Can User Complete**" field on an "honor roll" basis for these non-critical activity assignments, so that users can easily log their completion status without manager intervention.

At any time you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.

#### Activity Edit Action Buttons

All Activity information fields can be edited at any time with additional or updated information by selecting the record you wish to edit from the list, then select **Edit** from the Action Buttons at the bottom of the page.

Action buttons that appear across the lower portion of the page include the **Edit** which will allow you to view and edit the data fields for your selected record, the **Refresh** which allows you to refresh the page with recent updates if needed, and the **List** option which will return you to the previous listing that you were working from.



**Note:** After editing an Activity record and saving your updates, click the **Refresh** button to make sure all of your changes are displayed.

#### Making Assignments when Creating a New Activity

Once the new Activity has been created, the lower half of the Assignments sub-tab in the Activity record provides an area to make assignments for the Activity. Since your newly created Activity has just been defined, no assignments will be displayed.

EVENTS & ACTI	VITIES: ACTI	VITY				
Information	Assignments	Advanced	Trig	gers	Games	
Activity: Testing du	e dates (Id:255)					
Users		As	sign	View	Status	Recommend
Assigned 3						
Assignments						
Groups: Job Codes: Locations:						
Activity Links		Ac	ld			
Title (click to edit)	) URL Completi	on				
Note: Links can be	available before	or after the us	er ha	s compl	eted the a	activity, or both

Figure 5-32- Events & Activities: Assignments with New Activity

Events & Activities: New Activity Assignments					
Element	Description				
Assigned Groups/Users:	Indicates which Users and Groups are assigned to the Activity. Click the <b>Assign</b> link to change or add users to the Activity. Select from Available Groups and/or Available Users (located on the right side of the screen), and click the <b>Assign</b> button to commit your selections and then select <b>Finished</b> to return to the Activity record. Use the available filters to find specific users or groups. You can view Available Groups by clicking the <b>Groups</b> button.				



**Note:** Only users are displayed in the left hand Assigned Users columns. Groups will not appear in this column, only the users assigned to those groups.

ACTIVITIES: ACTIVITY - USERS				
Activity: Testing due dates (Id:255)				
✓ Finished	Unassign 🕨	Assign		
			Check items to assign or remove a	nd click either Assign or Unassign
Assigned Users (check to unassign)	▼ Filter	Available U	sers (check to assign)	▼ Filter Groups
Filtered List			Filtered List	
Alfonso, Philippe		AAA Nove	ember 15, Test	
Android, Scorm		AAA November 15, Test		
C Arnold, Sarah		AAA teste	er, James	





**Note:** Activity assignment fields can be edited at any time with additional or updated information. No Edit button is required to update the assignment fields of an Activity record.

### 5.8.1.3 Activities: Edit an Activity Record

To edit an existing Activity record, select the Activity you wish to edit from the list of Events & Activities: Activities. Once the Activity record has displayed, click the **Edit** button to edit the Activity record. At any time you can select **Save** to save the changes you have make and return to the Activity record, or **Cancel** to return to the Activity record without saving any changes.

#### 5.8.1.4 Activities: Delete an Activity Record

To mark an Activity as Inactive or Request delete, select Events & Activities: Activities, then select the Activity you wish to change the status for from the list. When the Activity record is displayed, click the **Edit** button.

|--|

Figure 5-34- Events & Activities: Delete Activity Record

From the Activities: Activity Edit screen, at the Status field, select Inactive or Request Delete. Choose the Inactive status if you plan on using the Activity again in the future, and are not ready to mark it for deletion. Choose Active status if you would like to use an Inactive Activity again. Choose the **Delete** status if you do not plan on using the Activity again in the future and would like to mark it for deletion.

Click the **Save** button to activate your status change. The Status field will now show the requested status change, the date/time and person who requested it , and a highlight marker (**Yellow** = changed to Inactive, **Pink** = changed to Request delete.)

Click the List button to return to the list of Activities.



**Note:** Deletion tasks can only be performed by a Site or Root Administrator. When an item's status is changed to "Request delete", an Administrator reviews the request to ensure there is no need for it before performing the delete function(Administration tab > Deletion Tasks option.)

#### **5.8.2 Events & Activities: Activity Sub-Tabs**

The **Events & Activities: Activity** record is a detailed description of all the particulars of an Activity. To view and edit an Activity record, select the Activity you wish to view from the list of **Events & Activities: Activities** by clicking on the Activity and the **Events & Activities: Activity** record for that resource will appear. The displayed screen shows the Activity Information section, Action Buttons, Activity Assignments, Advanced options, Triggers, and Games.



Figure 5-36- Events & Activities: Activity Sub Tabs

#### 5.8.2.1 Events & Activities: Activity Information

Activity Information begins at the top of the screen including fields for Activity Name, description, type, due date, and status. To edit the Activity information, click the **Edit** button and you will be able to edit any of the selected activities' fields.

Action buttons are located across the midsection, allowing you to Edit, Refresh, and Return to the Activity List. To edit an Activity record, click the **Edit** button.



Figure 5-37- Events & Activities: Activity Information

#### 5.8.2.2 Events & Activities: Activity Assignments

These records list out any of the current Assignments for that Activity, including any Users/Groups, job codes, and location Assignments. These assignment fields may be updated at any time by clicking the **Assign** link (the Edit action button is not needed when adding or editing the assignment fields). Click the **View** link to see a list of assigned users.

ACTIVITIES: ACTIVITY					
Activity Information	Assignments	Triggers	Skills & Gar	mes	
Assigned Users		Assigr	n View Sta	itus	
Assigned 5					
Assignments					
Groups: Job Codes: Locations:					
% Activity Links		Add			
Title (click to edit) UR	L Completion				
Note: Links can be available before or after the user has completed the activity, or both					

Figure 5-38- Events & Activities: Activity Sub Tabs

Action buttons that appear across the lower portion of the page include the Edit which will allow you to view and edit the data fields for your selected record, the Refresh which allows you to refresh the page with recent updates if needed, and the List option which will return you to the previous listing that you were working from.

#### 5.8.2.4 Events & Activities: Triggers

The Triggers tab allows Administrators to set up automated notifications for the conditions of:

- Assigned to an Activity
- Completed an Activity
- Participated in an Activity
- Recommend Activity
- Reinforce Recommendation Activity

This functionality works identically to the Triggers tab for Events, See the Events -> Sub tabs -> Triggers section for additional information.

ACTIVITIES: ACTIVITY								
rmation	Assignments	Advanced	Triggers	Games				
						Trigger Actio	on:	▼ <b>+</b> Add
te-Activit	ty	Add	d Notificati	on Add A	ssignment/Re	commendation	Remove Action	Override Standard: Yes
tions:	Title	Destination	Notify En	nail SMS	Push Status	Calendar		
,	Activity Completed	User	~		Active	Immediately		
Recommend-Activity Add Notification Add Assignment/Recommendation Remove Action Override Star					Override Standard: Yes			
tions:	Title	Destination	n Notify I	Email SMS	Push Statu	ıs Calendar		
I	Recommend Activit	y User	~		Activ	e Immediately		
r t	IES: AC mation :e-Activit ions:	IES: ACTIVITY mation Assignments ce-Activity ions: Title Activity Completed mend-Activity ions: Title Recommend Activit	IES: ACTIVITY mation Assignments Advanced  ce-Activity Add  ions: Title Destination Activity Completed User  nend-Activity Add  ions: Title Destination Recommend Activity User	IES: ACTIVITY         mation       Assignments       Advanced       Triggers         te-Activity       Add Notification         ions:       Title       Destination       Notify Er         Activity Completed       User       ✓         mend-Activity       Add Notification       Notify         ions:       Title       Destination       Notify         Recommend Activity       User       ✓	IES: ACTIVITY         mation       Assignments       Advanced       Triggers       Games         te-Activity       Add Notification       Add	IES: ACTIVITY         mation       Assignments       Advanced       Triggers       Games         te-Activity       Add Notification       Add Assignment/Region         tions:       Title       Destination       Notify Email       SMS       Push       Status         Activity Completed       User       ✓       Active         nend-Activity       Add Notification       Add Assignment/Region         tions:       Title       Destination       Notify Email       SMS       Push       Status         tions:       Title       Destination       Notify Email       SMS       Push       Status         tions:       Title       Destination       Notify Email       SMS       Push       Status         Recommend       Activity       User       ✓       Activity	IES: ACTIVITY         mation       Assignments       Advanced       Triggers       Games         Trigger Activity       Add Notification       Add Assignment/Recommendation         ions:       Title       Destination       Notify Email       SMS       Push       Status       Calendar         Activity Completed       User       ✓       Active       Immediately         nend-Activity       Add Notification       Add Assignment/Recommendation         ions:       Title       Destination       Notify Email       SMS       Push       Status       Calendar         ions:       Title       Destination       Notify Email       SMS       Push       Status       Calendar         ions:       Title       Destination       Notify Email       SMS       Push       Status       Calendar         ions:       Title       Destination       Notify Email       SMS       Push       Status       Calendar         Recommend       Activity       User       ✓       Active       Immediately	IES: ACTIVITY         mation       Assignments       Advanced       Triggers       Games         Trigger Action:         Trigger Action:         trigger Activity         Add Notification       Add Assignment/Recommendation         Remove Action         ions:       Title       Destination       Notify Email       SMS       Push       Status       Calendar         Activity Completed       User <ul> <li>Active</li> <li>Immediately</li> <li>Add Notification</li> <li>Add Assignment/Recommendation</li> <li>Remove Action</li> </ul> Remove Action         Intel       Destination       Notify Email       SMS       Push       Status       Calendar       Remove Action       Remove

Figure 5-39- Events & Activities: Triggers

#### 5.8.2.5 Events & Activities: Games

The Games tab allows Administrators to set up Activity Game Points that can be associated to a specific Event Activity.

ACTIVITIES: ACTIVITY									
Information Assignments	Advanced	Triggers	Games						
Activity: Upload Test Activity (Id:218)									
Game Points									
+ Add Game Points									
🖺 Save 😂 Refresh									

Figure 5-40- Events & Activities: Games

### **5.9 Events & Activities: Activity Completion**

The Activity Completion page displays a database listing of all current Activity Completion records defined in the Course Manager database.

ACTIVITIES: ACTIVITY COMPLETION									
Activity: All									
Last Name:		User Status: Active	× Activity S	tatus: Participated	🛛 🗙 🔻 🖌 Apply				
Activity Name	User (click for info)	Status (click to change)	Primary Group	Primary Job Code					
test activity Bonham, John		Participated	optestui						
	Border, Collie	Participated	Doggie Group						

Figure 5-41– Events & Activities: Activity Completion

The Activity Completion table displays the following information:

Events & Activities: Activity Completion						
Element	Description					
Activity Name:	The name of the Activity.					
User:	Displays all of the users that have Activity completion records for the Activity. Users default to display only those users with last names that begin with the letter 'A'.					
Status:	Displays the current Status for the listed users.					
Primary Group:	Displays the User's Primary Group.					
Primary Job Code:	Displays the User's Primary Job Code.					

Filter options at the top of the page allow you to sort and filter the display, including:

Events & Activities: Activity Completion Filters						
Element	Description					
Activity:	Use the drop down to select a specific Activity whose results you wish to display.					
Last Name:	Select a letter of the alphabet to display only those users whose last name begins with that letter or select All to display all users.					
User Status:	Use the drop down to display only those users with the selected status (All, Active, or Inactive).					
Activity Status:	Use the drop down to display only those users with the selected Activity Status (All, Not Completed or Archived, Pending, Participated, Completed, Not Completed, or Archived).					

Use the **Apply** button to update the display.

From the displayed list of Activities, you may:

- Click the **User name** link for basic information about the selected User, including Name, Title, Organization, Job Code, Time Zone, Location, and any custom fields you may be using.
- Click the Status link for a user to change their status for the Activity or to download the associated file for the Activity that was uploaded by the user (if Activity Upload capability has been enabled and configured on the customer slice). To change the status of the Activity, select the appropriate radio button. Options include: Pending, Participated (waiting approval), Completed (approved), and Not Completed. You may also enter any comments in the Comments text box. Comments are only visible to administrators. Click the file name in the 'Uploaded Activity Files' to download the associated file for review.

At any time you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.

### **5.10 Events & Activities: Reports**

The **Events & Activities: Reports** drop down selection provides several pre-designed reports of **Events & Activities** stored in your Course Manager repository. Reports are listed alphabetically by Report Name. Click on the **Report Name** link to select the report you wish to view.

The following is a list of the **Events & Activities: Reports**. Additional Reports created as jsp's or custom reports purchased from OnPoint can be added to this list using the Manage Reports function under the Administration menu.

REPO	REPORTS: Event Reports					
No	Report Name	Report Title	Description	Туре		
652	Activity Comments by Group	Activity Comments by Group	This report lists all comments made for a specific activity for a specific user. This report can be filtered by group and activity.	Standard		
653	Activity Completion by Group	Activity Completion by Group	Lists the users assigned to the specified Activity and their completion status for that Activity.	Standard		
567	Activity List	Activity List	A list of all active Activities.	Standard		
551	Event Assignments by Group	Event Assignments by Group	s List of users and the events they are assigned to, filtered by Group	Standard		
614	Event Attendance by Group	Event Attendance by Group	List of Attendees, filtered by Group, for a specified event.	Standard		
618	Event Attendance by Session by Group	Event Attendance by Session by Group	List of user/learner attendance for a selected event session filtered by Group	Standard		

Figure 5-42- Events & Activities: Reports

#### Most of the reports have a filter option:

Event Attendance by Group		close
List of Attendees, filtered by Group, for a spec	ified event.	
Event: • Pla Group: Pla Status: All Start Date: End Date: Results Display Options (Show/Hide): Generate Report	ease Select an Event  ease Select a Group   ease Select a Group   (mm/dd/yyyy)  (mm/dd/yyyy)	

Figure 5-43- Events & Activities: Attendee List

Select your Report criteria from the available drop-down menu options, and click the **Generate Report** button to run the report. The report results will display with the OPLS Report Viewer in a pop-up window.

OPLS Report Viewer	I	Page 1 of 1 🛛 🗐 🖌 🕨 🕪		🚔   🖏	🔁   bao	k   close			
Event Attendance by Group       OnPoint Demo Slice         Event: CellCast Training       Sep-3-2014 2:20 PM         Group: All       Status: All         Date: 1/1/2000 to 9/3/2014       Sep-3-2014 2:20 PM									
Name	Login	Class	Session Date	Event Location	Approved	Attended			
Group: All Users B-H Demo, User	bh-demo@onpointlearning.com	Day 1 - CellCast Training	08/30/2010 09:00 AM	New York - Wall Street Center	Yes	No			
B-H Demo, User	bh-demo@onpointlearning.com	Day 2 - CellCast Training	08/31/2010 09:00 AM	New York - Wall Street Center	Yes	No			
Group: Support Team									
B-H Demo, User	bh-demo@onpointlearning.com	Day 1 - CellCast Training	08/30/2010 09:00 AM	New York - Wall Street Center	Yes	No			
B-H Demo, User	bh-demo@onpointlearning.com	Day 2 - CellCast Training	08/31/2010 09:00 AM	New York - Wall Street Center	Yes	No			
Group: OnPoint Testers									
B-H Demo, User	bh-demo@onpointlearning.com	Day 1 - CellCast Training	08/30/2010 09:00 AM	New York - Wall Street Center	Yes	No			
B-H Demo, User	bh-demo@onpointlearning.com	Day 2 - CellCast Training	08/31/2010 09:00 AM	New York - Wall Street Center	Yes	No			
3 record(s) Produced by OPLS Copyright © 2002-2014, OnPoint Digital, Inc. All rights reserved									

Figure 5-44- Events & Activities: Event Non-Compliance

#### **Output Data to Spreadsheets**

The Output Data to Spreadsheets utility allows you to dump all of the data in a selected database table to a CSV file.

The CSV file can be **Printed**, **Imported** into a spreadsheet or as a **PDF**.

**Note:** This functionality is only available in Course Manager, and not in Performance Manager; even if the report is specified to be available in Performance Manager, this icon does not display.



Figure 5-45- Events & Activities: Output to Spreadsheet